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State of Ohio - Office of Budget and Management
30 East Broad Street - Columbus, Ohio 43266-0411

February 15, 1989
To the Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly and the Citizens of Ohio:

It is my privilege to issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the financial condi-
tion of the State of Ohio for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1988. The report is prepared in conformance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board.

This report was prepared by the Ohio Office of Budget and Management pursuant to Section 126.21 of
the Ohio Revised Code which requires that an official financial report of the State be issued annually.
The report includes General Purpose Financial Statements (GPFS), which provide an overview of the
State's financial position and the results of financial operations by fund type. The GPFS have been
audited jointly by the Office of Auditor of State, Thomas E. Ferguson, and Ernst & Whinney, a nation-
ally recognized certified public accounting firm. The results of this audit, the State's first such audit, are
included in this report.

The Office of Budget and Management is responsible for the accuracy of the data presented and the
completeness and fairness of its presentation, including all disclosures,

The State's General Purpose Financial Statements include all funds and account groups for which the ’
State exercises "oversight responsibility." We used the criteria established in the Governmental Ac- -
counting Standards Board's Codifica ion of Governmenta nting and Financial Reporting Stan-
dards, Section 2100, to determine the funds and account groups over which the State has this responsi-
bility. Note 1.A. to the financial statements explains more fully which financial activities are included
in and which are excluded from the State's reporting entity.

In addition to the General Purpose Financial Statements, the CAFR includes the following: introductory
information; combining financial statements that present summarized information by individual fund;
supporting schedules; fund descriptions; and statistical tables that present financial, economic, and
demographic data about the State.

FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

The data in the financial Statements are presented in accordance with a fund classification system pre-
scribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The purpose of this system is to improve the
Comparability of the financial reports of different governmental units,

T.ht": System has three categories of funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each category is
divided into several "fund types."

mental f are those through which State functions are financed. There are four govern-
mental fund types: General, special revenue, capital projects, and debt service funds,




iduciary fun include trust funds, which account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity,
and agency funds, which account for assets held by the State as an agent for individuals, private organi-
zations, other governments, or other funds,

ence is that the "General Fund"” in the CAFR includes more than just the State's General Revenye Fund.
The General Fund also includes the Budget Stabilization Fund and reimbursernent-supported funds used
for activities administered by State agencies and departments for which special revenue or proprietary
fund classifications were considered to be inappropriate.

comprehensive manner.
INDEPENDENT AUDIT RESULTS

The outcome of the joint audit conducted by the Auditor of State and Ernst & Whinney, in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, was an unqualified auditor's report (“clean opinion”) on the
governmental and fiduciary funds and account groups.

For the internal service fund type, deficiencies in fixed asset recordkeeping resulted in a qualification of
the auditors' report on this fund type.

The State is working to resolve these deficiencies so that improved financial reporting will be achieved.
ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

In fiscal year 1988, the State completed the phased implementation of its new Central Accounting
System (CAS). CAS replaced an obsolete 20-year-old accounting system and is the cornerstone of
Ohio's revitalized financial management environment.



CAS achieves budgetary control over the various accounts of the State's funds. The bicameral legisla-
ture, the General Assembly, authorizes expenditures by appropriating funds in biennial and supplemen-
tal appropriation acts. The Office of Budget and Management uses CAS to control subsequent depart-
mental obligation and expenditure activity to ensure that the authorized appropriations are not exceeded.

The State's budgetary financial statements are prepared on a modified cash basis of accounting. This
means that revenues are recognized when cash is received and expenditures are recognized when cash is
paid. Encumbrances, reservations of appropriation authority as of June 30, the end of the State fiscal
year, are reflected as expenditures on the budgetary basis of accounting.

The State's GAAP financial statements for the governmental and expendable trust funds have been
prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting. This means that revenues are recognized when
measurable and available; expenditures are recognized when goods or services are received or liabilities
incurred. The enterprise, internal service, and pension trust funds are accounted for on the accrual basis
of accounting. This means that revenues are recognized when earned and expenditures are recognized
when incurred.

Additional discussion of the budgetary and GAAP bases of accounting is provided in Note 1 to the
financial statements.

CAS maintains all budgetary-basis transactions and most GA AP-basis adjustments. In addition to the
information obtained from the CAS for financial reporting, selected financial information provided by
the State' s agencies and departments is compiled to complete the GAAP-basis financial statements.

Differences between the two bases of accounting (budgetary vs. GAAP) include: (1) entity differences--
the GAAP reporting entity may include organizations such as financing authoritities and other compo-
nent units that are not included in the State's budget; (2) basis differences -- the GAAP basis results in
the reporting of accruals while the budgetary basis results in the reporting of cash transactions; and

(3) timing differences -- for example, GAAP recognizes expenditures for payables for goods and serv-
ices received, whereas the budgetary basis considers unliquidated encumbrances as expenditures. A rec-
onciliation between the GAAP-basis and budgetary-basis financial statements is presented in Note 3 to
the financial statements. ‘

CASH MANAGEMENT

In Ohio, with the exception of certain component units of the State that have independent powers to
manage and invest their funds, the Treasurer of State is responsible for investing the State's cash pool.
During fiscal year 1988, cash management and investment transactions made by the Treasurer of State's
Office, in accordance with the Uniform Depository Act, were limited to checking accounts and certifi-
cate of deposits with qualified public depositories, U.S. government and agency obligations, and repur-
chase agreements. For fiscal year 1988, investment earnings on the State's cash pool managed by the
Treasurer of State totaled $139.5 million.

Quarterly, the Office of Budget and Management allocates the interest income earned on the cash pool
to the various funds desi gnated by law to receive the earnings. The allocation is calculated in accor-
dance with a formula that is based on average daily cash balances invested during the quarter.




GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL F UNCTIONS

public assistance and medicaid; health and human services; justice and public protection; environmental
protection and natural Tesources; transportation; general government Services; community and economic
development; local government support and tax relief; capital outlay; and debt service.

An analysis of revenues and expenditures for all govermnmental funds reported for fiscal year 1988 is
shown in the graphic presentation that follows this letter.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of June 30, 1988, the State reported a total of $3.9 billion in outstanding debt issues in its General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group as follows (amounts expressed in millions):

Percentage
Outstanding Balance Increase (Decrease)
asof June 30, 1988 Singe June 30, 1987
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS $ 757 +2.9%
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 2,982 +5.0%
REVENUE BONDS 167 -27.0%

TOTAL $3,906




ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Ohio's economic growth has typically lagged behind U.S. economic growth and national recessions have
hit Ohio harder than the U.S. as a whole. This has been due mainly to Ohio's strong dependence upon
manufacturing, especially the steel and auto industries.

In recent years, however, employment growth in Ohio has been concentrated largely in the service and
non-manufacturing sectors. Since January 1983, Ohio's heavy industry and manufacturing concerns
have substantially revitalized plant and equipment which contributed to significant improvements in
productivity, production capacity, and competitiveness. These developments have contributed to a
reversal of Ohio's economic performance. Now a lessor portion of employment is devoted to manufac-
turing. The unemployment rate has dropped from a high of 13.8 percent to approximately six percent.

Budget planning has commenced for the 1990-91 biennium, July 1, 1989 through June 30, 1991. The
economic forecast for the short-range future is that the nation and Ohio will experience slow, but contin-
ued growth. Additionally, most economists are not projecting a recession during the forecast period.
JOBS AND BUSINESS IN OHIO
Some recent highlights on jobs and business in Ohio include the following:
o Ford and Nissan are investing nearly a billion dollars in an Avon Lake truck plant—the largest
single expansion project in Ohio's history. The State and the Lorain County Community College

teamed up to help retrain auto workers for the plant.

o Honda of America Mfg., Inc. is building a second plant in Marysville and has begun exporting
Ohio-made automobiles.

o0 Figgie International, one of the nation's fastest growing Fortune 500 companies, moved its head-
quarters back to Cleveland after eight years out of state.

0 More than 300 foreign companies, including 100 Japanese firms, now call Ohio home.

o Continuation of the Ohio Thomas Edison Program as well as coal technology and minority
business development programs have helped finance businesses and research projects.
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Expenditures for All Governmental Funds

State Fiscal Year 1988
(millions of doliars)

Capital Outlay Debt Service
$559.2 36 %6296 4.1%

Local Gov't Support,
Tax Relief and Other
$1,549.7 10.1%

Communhy and Economic
Development
$316.6 2.1%

General Government — _
$2524 1.6%

Transportation
$1,146.7 75%

Primary, Secondary
and Other Education
$3,5735 233%

Higher Education

Environmental Protection/ $1,2659 839

and Natural Resources

$176.0 1.2%
Justice and Public
Protection
$661.1 4.3%
Publi istance
Healhand Human il
$14321 93% $3764.4 246%
Revenues for All Governmental Funds
State Fiscal Year 1988
(millions of dollars)
Other
$531.1 3.7%
Income Taxes
$3,362.7 2329
Federal Government
$3,833.1 26.4%
Sales, Services

and Charges
$63.0 4% \

Licenses, Permits

and Fees
Sales Taxes
$646.8 3.8% $3,2259 2239
Other Taxes
$690.2 4.8%
Motor Vehidle R
Fuel Taxes Cq(pora!e and Public
$811.2 56% Utility Taxes

$1419.4 98%
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THOMAS E. FERGUSON EXW Ernst & Whinney
AUDITOR OF STATE 2400 Nationwide Plaza
COLUMBUS. OHIO 43266-0040 ] Columbus, Ohio 43215

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

February 3, 1989

The Honorable Richard F. Celeste, Governor
State of Ohio
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the State of Ohio, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 1988, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the State's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the following component units
and funds: the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority, the Ohio Water Development Authority, the Ohio
Housing Finance Agency, the Economic Development Financing Division, the Minority Development
Finance Commission, the Ohio Public Facilities Commission, the Ohio Bureau of Employment Services, the
Ohio Turnpike Commission, the Ohio Building Authority, the State Parking Commission, the Ohio Bureau
of Workers' Compensation and Industrial Commission of Ohio and the State Highway Patrol Retirement
System, which statements reflect the following percent of total assets or liabilities and revenue of the
indicated fund type and account groups:

Percent of Total Percent of Total
Assets/(Liabilities) Revenues
Special Revenue fund type 21% 15%
Debt Service fund type 73% 8%
Capital Projects fund type 15% 14%
Enterprise fund type 91% 40%
Internal Service fund type 73% 2%
Trust and Agency fund type 29% 100%
General Fixed Assets account group 42% o
General Long-Term Obligations account group (69% ) o

The financial statements of these component units and funds were audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts of these component units and
funds included in the fund types and account groups comprising the general purpose financial statements is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

13



The Honorable Richard F. Celeste, Governor

As more fully described in Note 18, the accounting records of the Ohio Bureay of Workers' Compensatic
and Industria] Commission of Ohio are not adequate to permit proper measurement of certain assets ar
liabilities, includin i f reserves for claims. In addition, the outcome of several litigation matte
i f th



The Honorable Richard F. Celeste, Governor

As more fully described in Note 19, certain expenditures incurred by the Ohio Bureau of Employment
Services special revenue fund and which were reimbursed under federal awards have been questioned in the
amount of $51,343,260. The amount of expenditures which may be ultimately disallowed by grantor
agencies and repaid by the Bureau is not presently determinable, and no provision has been made in the
financial statements for the effect, if any, of such repayment.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken
as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedule listed in the table of contents are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of
the State of Ohio. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of
the general purpose statements and, in our opinion, except with respect to the enterprise fund type and the
omission of certain internal service fund information, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation
to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not examine the data included in the statistical section of this report and, therefore, express no opinion
thereon.

%MZS‘T@VM‘M/ ‘ é/»«»tv%/ﬁw..?
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALAN CES

REVENUES:
goome TaXes ... ...
Sales Taxes ... .. [l

Licenses, Permits and Fees. ... [T
Sales, Services and Charges. ................011
Federal Government ... I
OMOr o

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Primary, Secondary ang Other Education .. ... . . .
e Education.. ... ..,
Public Assistance end Mediceiol ... ...
Health ang fluman Services. ... [T
Justice and Public Protection . ... /1"l
Environmenta/ Protection ang Natural Resources ..., . . . .
lransportation . ..., 77T Tosources
Genera/ Sovernment ... ... Il
Community ang Economic Development. ... 1T
Local Government Support, Tax Relief and Other. ... . .
AL QUILAY

besrsemvice...... . . .

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
PENDITURES ...

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Ao rocee0s .
Refunding Bong Proceeds ...
Payment to Refunded Bong Escrow Agents .. ... |1
Operating Transfers-in.

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES). ... . ... .. .. . .

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPEND/ TURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES . .. . &

FUND BALANCES, JuLy T

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE
3.013257 3 349,437 —
3,088,586 137,266 —
1,341,358 77,993 —_
— 763,271 47,957
575,631 51,149 63,430
58,799 487,654 333
41,863 21,152 —_
1,857,073 1,975,569 448
140,010 288.457 89,052
10,116,577 4,151,943 201,214
2,950,988 622,471 —
1,250,054 15,871 —
3,597,766 166,639 —
631,113 801,011 —
485,346 175,756 —
75,143 100,874 —_
37,273 1,072,233 —
189,692 62,683 —
70,837 245,815 —
539,869 1,009,844 -
34,290 3,963 —_
— — 629,615
9,862,365 4,277,100 629,615
254,212 (125,152) (428.401)
_ 10,000 659
— — 799,527
— —_ (199,521)
292,588 696,344 489,265
(499,170) (448,805) —
(206.582) 257,539 489,924
47,630 132,387 61,523
712,187 1,111,723 494,226
759,817 8 1244119 555,749




FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPE

CAPITAL
PROJECTS

EXPENDABLE
TRUST

TOTAL
(MEMORANDUM
ONLY)

931,523

15,017

$ 3,362,694

3,225,852
1,419.351
811,222
931,523
690,210
546,786
63,015
3.833,090
546,084

946,540

15,429,827

520,968

558,196

(544,648)

432,883

165,749
(10.000)
588,032

43,384

748,436

3 197,820
%

3,573,459
1,265,865
3,764,405
2,039,759
661,102
176,017
1,146,734
252,375
316,646
1,549,713
559,221
629,615

607,635

15,934,911

338.905

(505,084)

443,542
199,521
(199,521)
1,643,346
(957,975)

1,128,913

338,905

743,650

623,829

2,610,222

$ 482,555

3

3,234,051
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amoumnts expressed in thousands)

GENERAL FUND

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
Income Taxes....... ... ... ... ... . . .. . ... ... $ 3,205,100 $ 3,362,861 $ 157,761
Sales Taxes ..................... ... ... 3,174,000 3,209,870 35,870
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . ................ . .. 1,464,744 1,407,836 (56,908)
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes ........ .. . ...~~~ _— —_— —_
Other Taxes ................. ... ... ... 567,700 573,801 6,701
Licenses, Permits and Fees ........ .. ... . 0" 68,578 61,393 (7,185)
Sales, Services and Charges..................... .. .. 41,808 41,827 119
Federal Government.......... ... .. .. T 1,867,560 1,855,554 (12,006)
Other ..o 238,439 248,085 9,646
TOTALREVENUES. ...................... .. ... . .. 10,627,929 10,761,327 133,398
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education. .. ........ . .. .. 2,959,031 2,957,933 1,098
Higher Education . ... ... .. .. . U 1,266,384 1,263,850 2,534
Public Assistance and Medicaid. ... ......... .. ... .. . 3,655,753 3,641,537 14,216
Health and Human Services . ..... ... ... ... 649,579 630,805 18,714
Justice and Public Protection. . .. ... . . .. .. .. " 495,720 485,623 10,097
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources. . . . .. .. .. 88,263 84,475 3,788
Transportation ......... ... .. . 32,683 32,628 55
General Government ... ....... .. ... . ... .. 276,858 260,781 16,077
Community and Economic Development ....... .. ... . . . 98,524 91,215 7,309
Local Government Support, Tax Relief and Other . . . ... ... 597,344 590,896 6,448
CAPITALOUTLAY ... . . . ' 55,470 35,208 20,262
DEBTSERVICE ........ ... ... .. ... . ... 440,363 405,989 34,374
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. .......... ... . . . . . . 10,615,912 10,480,940 134,972
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . ... .. ... .. .. ... 12,017 280,387 268,370
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds ................. ... .. ... . — —_ —
Operating Transters-in....... ... ... .. """ 302,749 301,872 (877)
Operating Transfers-out......... ... .. .. """ (559,320) (5682,783) (23,463)
Encumbrance Reversions. . ...... ... . — 37,111 37,111
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) . ... ... .. .. (256,571) {243,800) 12,771
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF RE VENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES. ... ... . (244,554) 36,587 281,141
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGE TARY FUND BALANCES
OEFICITS), JuLY 1. ... 323,618 323,618 —
Increase in Designated for Budget Stabilization. . . ... ... . . (21,485) (21,485) —_
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNA TED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . .. ... ... . . . . . 57,579 338,720 281,141
Fund Balance Designated for Budget Stabilization,
June 30 ... 283,915 283,915 —
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS),
JUNE3O.............. ... ... ... $ 341,494 3 622635 g 281,141

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVQRABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 1,657 $ 1,657 $ —_— $ — 3 - 3 .
9,089 9,089 — — . .
11,483 11,483 — — —_ —_
762,400 762,400 —_ 48,965 48,965 —_
571,090 51,090 — 61,994 61,994 —_
472,930 472,930 — 333 333 —_
13,885 13,885 _ — __ _
1,925,128 1,925,128 —_— — _ -
252,124 252,124 _— 79,673 79,673 —
3,499,786 3,499,786 — 190,965 190,965 _
690,967 675,031 15,936 — —_— _—
14,828 13,031 1,797 — —_— —
228,166 163,736 64,430 _ _ _
789,946 737,023 52,923 —_— —_— —
216,262 195,225 21,037 _— — __
123,682 106,339 17,343 — — _
1,166,873 1,044,904 121,969 — _— —_
75,647 66,815 8,832 — _— -
315,374 265,962 49,412 - — -
1,043,781 1,043,212 569 — ___ _
6,781 4,097 2,684 —_ _— —
— — — 195,402 192,298 3.104
4,672,307 4,315,375 356,932 195,402 192,298 3,104
(1,172,521) (815,589) 356,932 (4,437) {1,333) 3,104
— —— —_ 660 660 _
1,231,432 1.231,432 —_— — — —
(398,949) (398,949) — _— —_ -
90,791 90,791 — — — _
923,274 923,274 — 660 660 —_
$ (249,247) 107,685 $ 356,932 $ (3,777) (673) § 3,104
e ——— P d
(310,270) 110,564
(202,525) 109,897
3 (202,525) $ 109,891
(continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVEN UES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
(UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes............... ... ... .. . .. . ... . . . $
Sales Taxes ...................... .. ... . ...~ _
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . ............... ... .
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes .. ........ ... ... ... .. . "
OtherTaxes ................... ... ... ... "

Other ............................ ...

10,860

10,860

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education. .. .......... . . .
Higher Education ... ......... ... .. ... ... .. """ —

....................................

General Government

Community and Economic Development ............ . ... :

Local Government Support, Tax Relief and Other ,........
CAPITALOUTLAY ... ... ... .. . .. . .
DEBTSERVICE ......... .. ... ... ... ... ...

707,840

275,757

432,083

707,840

275,757

432,083

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . ................ (696,980)

(264,897)

432,083

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds 312,172
30,861
(30,861)

32,961

...................................

312,172
30,867
(30,867)
32,961

345,133

345,133

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . . . ........ ... ... . . . . . 3

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1. ... o

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE30 ... ... ... ... .. .. .. . . . .
Fund Balance Designated for Budget Stabilization,
June 30

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS),
JUNE3O....................... .. .. ...

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(351,847)

80,236

(169,505)

————————————————

(89,269)

$ (89,269)

$ 432,083

B



[THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND PENSION TRUST FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for Sales and Services ....... ... ... ... ... . .
Premium and Assessment Income ... ... . .. . . . . .. .
Investment income. . ...
Employer Contributions . ... .. . 0T
Employee Contributions. ... .. ... "
Other ...

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Costs of Sales and Services ............... ... ... ...
Administration ...l
Prizes and Claims ... ... .0 i
Benefit Payments and Refunds ........... ... .. ... ..~
Depreoiation ... ..l

Other ...

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment ncome. ... 0T
Interest Expense ... L
Other . ..o

OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-out................ ... .. .

NETINCOME (LOSS). . .................... .. ... ...

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS)/
FUND BALANCES, JUNE30 ..... . . .

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemsnt.

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
INTERNAL PENSION
ENTERPRISE SERVICE TRUST

1,727,383 g 162,625 g —

1,192,491 - —
32,361 — 13,37

— — 9,49

— - 3,46

4,628 14,778 11,
2,956,863 177,403 26,45

221.204 103,322 —
207.963 45,075 367

682,805 — —
1,592,145 — 6,027

9.624 477 —_

202,278 10,113 —
2,916,019 158,987 6,394
40,844 18,416 20,061

557,719 12,985 —

(2,126) (12,437) —

638 (107) —

556,231 4471 —
597,075 18,857 20,061

(574,908) (110,467) —
22,167 (91,610) 20,067
(2,752,132) 305,777 130.766
(2.729,965) g 214,167 g 150,827




e

TOTAL
(MEMORANDUM
ONLY}

g 1,890,008
1,192,491
45,740

9,495

3,465

19,522

3,160.721

324,526
253,405
662,805
1,598,172
10,101
212,391
3,081,400

79,321

570,704
(14,563)
531

556,672
635,993

(685,375)
(49,382)

(2,315,589)

3 (2364,971)

27
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AN
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUN

(amounts expressed in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Netincome (Loss)................ ... . ...

Add (Deduct) items Not Affecting Cash:

Increase in Other Receivables. .. ..........

Decrease (increase) in inventory ... ........
Decrease (Increase) in Other Current Assets . .

Increase in Premiums and Assessments Receivabie . ... ...

Decrease (Increase) in Other Restricted Assets

Decrease in Other Noncurrent Assets. . . . . . ..
Decrease in Accounts Payable ............

Increase in Workers' Compensation Benefits Payable. . ... ..

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities ., . ..
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds. ...
Increase in Deferred Revenues . ... ........

Amortization of Bor_rd Premium . . ...........
Other, Net . .................... ... ..

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED iN)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES ... .... . .. ... ..

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES . . .. ... ... . .. ...

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Issuance (Retirement) of Revenue Bonds . . ...

Reduction of Lease Obligations and Other Payables .......

Decrease in Advances from Other Funds .. ...
Decrease in Advances to Other Funds . . . . . ..

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES . ...

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ... ... ...

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 ... ...

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

D PENSION TRUST FUND
E 30, 1988

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
INTERNAL PENSION
ENTERPRISE SERVICE TRUST
22,167 $ (91.610) 8 20,067
(47,517) (564) (350)
_ (245) —~
(1,749) 13,183 (111)
2,373 (1,703) -
1,742 (259) 2
(162,753) — -
3,000 (9,062) —
— 241 -
(8,054) (11,114) —
485,639 — —
(4,262) (2,297) 84
(2.275) 43,305 —
20,515 8,350 —
33,357 1,783 —
166,257 —_ —_
— 317 _
9,624 477 —
20,635 — —
4,797 — -
1,503 — -
136 _ —
545,135 (49,192) 19,686
(68,121) (2,054) (20,175)
(299,264) - _
(10,524) (673) _
(97,717) 60,158 —
(475,626) 57,431 (20,175)
4 (1,495) —
(59) (7,463) —
— (542) —_
— 361 —
(55) (9,139) _
69,454 (900) (489)
357,708 34,256 550
427,162 $ 33,356 $ 61




.

TOTAL
(MEMORANDUM

ONLY)
[kt A

s (49,382)

(48,431)

(245)
11,323
670
1,485

(162,753)

(6,062)
241

(19,168)
485,639

(6,469)
41,030
28,865
35,140
166,257
317
10,701
20,635
4,797
1,503
136

515,629

(90,350)
(299,264)
(11,197)
(37,559)

(438,370)

(1,491)
(7,522)

(542)

—_ 367

SN

68,065
392,514

3 460,579
B
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STATE OF OHIO :
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1988

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Ohio present the financial position of the various
fund types and account groups, the results of operations of the various fund types, and the cash flows of
the proprietary and pension trust funds. The financial statements are presented, as of June 30, 1988, and
for the year then ended, and have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles,
which are primarily set forth in the GASB’s i i Vi n nting and Financial
Reporting Standards (GASB Codification). The State’s significant accounting policies are described
below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the State includes all funds, account groups, elected offices, depart-
ments, and agencies of the State, as well as bureaus, boards, commissions, authorities, and retirement
systems over which the State’s executive, legislative, or judicial branches exercise oversight responsibil-
ity. Oversight responsibility is defined in GASB Codification Section 2100 and includes the following
considerations: financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of manage-
ment, ability to significantly influence operations, accountability for fiscal matters, the scope of an or-
ganization’s public service, and/or special financing relationships.

Based on the application of the GASB Codification criteria, the following additional organizations meet
the oversight criteria and are also included in the accompanying financial statements:

Ohio Public Facilities Commission State Highway Patrol Retirement System

Ohio Building Authority Ohio Turnpike Commission
State Parking Commission* Ohio Student Loan Commission
Ohio Higher Education Facility Commission Ohio Lottery Commission

Ohio Housing Finance Agency
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority
Ohio Water Development Authority

* In early calendar year 1988, the State Underground Parking Commission's name was changed to
the State Parking Commission

The following organizations have been determined not to be part of the reporting entity after applying
the manifestations of oversight responsibility criteria of GASB Codification Section 2100, and therefore,
have been excluded from the accompanying financial statements:

Public Employees Retirement System

School Employees Retirement System

State Teachers Retirement S ystem

Police and Firemen’s Disability and Pension Fund

All State-assisted universities and colleges

Ohio Public Employees Deferred Compensation Board
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STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1988

NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The retirement systems listed on the previous page maintain a portion of their assets with the Treasurer

of State who serves as custodian of the assets. The assets remain under the administrative and financial
control of the retirement systems, which maintain separate independent accouinting systems. The retire-
ment systems' assets other than those of the State Highway Patrol Retirement System are not reported in
the State's financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

The State of Ohio uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and results of its
operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and aid financial management
by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. An account group isa
financial reporting entity designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not
recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect expendable available financial resources.
Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each category, in
turn, is divided into separate “fund types.”

A description of each fund type and account group follows.
1. Governmental Fund Types

General — The General Fund accounts for current financial resources traditionally associated with gov-
ernment, which are not required legally or by sound financial management practices to be accounted for
in another fund.

Special Revenue — The special revenue funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for designated purposes. The general administrative activities of the Ohio Turnpike Com-
mission, Ohio Water Development Authority, and Ohio Air Quality Development Authority are in-
cluded in the special revenue funds for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1987.

Debt Service — The debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of
g'eneral long-term debt principal and interest. The debt service activities of the Ohio Turnpike Commis-
Ston are included in the debt service funds for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1987.

Capital Projects — The capital projects funds account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and for major repairs and replacements other than those financed by proprietary funds
and trust funds. The capital projects activities of the Ohio Turnpike Commission are included in the
capital projects funds for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1987.

2. Proprietary Fund Types
Enterprise — Th e enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner

similar to private business enterprises - where the State's intent is that the cost of providing goods or
Services 1o the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 19

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

charges; or where the State has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for
accountability purposes. The Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation and the State Parkin g Commis-
sion are included in the enterprise funds for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1987.

Internal Service — The internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided
a State department or agency to other State agencies and to other government units, on a cost-reimbur:
ment basis.

3. Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust funds account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity. Agency funds account for assets
held by the State as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other
funds. The State Highway Patrol Retirement System is included as a pension trust fund for its fiscal
year ended December 31, 1987.

4. Account Groups

General Fixed Assets — The General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired ¢
constructed for use by the State for general governmental purposes. These include all fixed assets
except those accounted for in the proprietary funds.

- igations — The General Long-Term Obligations Account Group accounts for
the State's unmatured general obligation bonds and other long-term obligations not required to be ac-
counted for in the proprietary and pension trust funds.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus.

Governmental and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a flow of financial resources measure-
ment focus. Under this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are
presented on the balance sheet; increases (i.e., revenue and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e.,
expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets are presented in these funds’ operating
statements.

Proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for using a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operations of these
funds are presented on the balance sheet; fund equity (i.e., net assets) is segregated on the balance sheet
into two components, contributed capital and retained earnings. Increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases
(i.e., expenses) in net assets are presented in these funds’ operating statements.

The modified accrual basis of accounting has been applied to all governmental, expendable trust, and
agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when suscep-
tible to accrual, that is, when they become both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

amount of the transaction can be determined, and “available” means the amount is collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The State
considers revenues as available, if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are
recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service funds
for payments to be made in the subsequent fiscal year.

Significant revenue sources susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis of accounting
follow:

Sales and use taxes

Personal income taxes

Motor vehicle fuel taxes
Charges for goods and services

Licenses, permits, fees, and other miscellaneous revenues are not susceptible to accrual because gener-
ally they are not measurable until received in cash.

Deferred revenue, as reported on the State’s combined balance sheet, represents resources received
before the State has a legal claim to them, such as the receipt of federal grant monies prior to the incur-
rence of qualifying expenditures. When the State has a legal claim to the resources, the revenue is rec-
ognized.

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied to proprietary and pension trust funds. Under this
method, revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when incurred.

D. Budgetary Process

As required by the Ohio Revised Code, the Governor submits biennial operating and capital budgets to
the General Assembly. The particular budget, which includes those funds of the State subject to appro-
priation pursuant to State law, is composed of all proposed expenditures for the State and of estimated
revenues and borrowings for a biennium.

The General Assembly enacts the budget through passage of specific departmental line-item appropria-
tions by program or major object of expenditures. The governor may veto any item in an appropriation
bill, subject to legislative override.

Operating appropriations, appropriated biennially, are generally provided in annual amounts, while
capital appropriations are biennial.

Transfers of appropriations between years of a biennium and budget revisions during a year, reflecting
program changes or intradepartmental transfers of an administrative nature, may be effected with certain
executive and legislative branch approval. Only the General Assembly, however, may transfer or
authorize the conditions under which appropriations may be transferred between departments.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The State's Central Accounting System controls expenditures by fund and by line-item for items estab-
lished in appropriation acts, A modified cash basis of accounting is used for budgetary purposes. En-

In the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances--Budget and Actual (Budg-
etary Basis), budgeted revenues for the General Fund Tepresent periodically updated revenue budgets.
For other budgeted funds, the original budgeted revenues, as submitted by the Governor, do not repre-

Fund, which are reported at market.

pensation Enterprise Fund, corporate and government bonds and obligations with fixed maturities and
investments in common and preferred stocks are carried at cost or market; investments in short-term ob-
ligations are carried at cost, which approximates market value.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For the Ohio Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund, specific State investments are dedicated to the
payment of deferred prize awards and are stated at cost, which is not in excess of market value.

H. Inventories

For governmental funds, the costs of inventories acquired are recorded as expenditures when purchased.
At year end, physical counts are taken of significant inventories for the governmental fund types and are
generally valued at weighted-average cost. Proprietary fund inventories are valued at cost, which ap-
proximates market, principally on a first-in, first-out consumption method.

I. Restricted Assets

Assets held by a trustee in connection with the State’s financing lease arrangements are classified in the
internal service funds as restricted assets, since their use is limited by applicable leases and trust agree-
ments (See NOTE 14).

Assets restricted for payment of deferred prize awards (Ohio Lotto) are reported for the Ohio Lottery
Commission in the enterprise funds.

A convenant for the State's 1983 economic development bonds requires a portion of the bond proceeds
be held and invested in a reserve account placed with a trustee financial institution. These restricted
assets are reported in the special revenue funds.

Additionally, covenants for the Ohio Building Authority's bonds require its pledged receipts also be held
and invested in a reserve account placed with a trustee financial institution. These restricted assets are
reported in the internal service funds.

J. Fixed Assets

General Fixed Assets — General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct
them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds,
and the related assets are reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. All purchased fixed
assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at estimated historical cost where no
historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value at acquisi-
tion date.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend an
asset's useful life are not capitalized. The cost of major improvements is capitalized.

Public domain ("infrastructure”) general fixed assets consisting of among other assets, roads, bridges,
curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems, are not capitalized,

since these assets are immovable and of value only to the government.

Assets in the General Fixed Assets Account Group are not depreciated.
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Fixed Assets — Fixed assets are stated at cost or, for donated assets, at
fair market value at acquisition date. Fixed assets, excluding land, are depreciated on the straight-line
method over estimated service lives. Material interest is capitalized on proprietary fund fixed assets
acquired through the issuance of debt. Fixed asset records for certain of the State's internal service funds
are incomplete as described in NOTE 8. Accordingly, fixed asset accounts are understated, and the as-
sociated depreciation expense is not recorded.

K. Long-Term Obligations

A long-term obligation is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due. Only that portion
expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a liability of a gov-
ernmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the General Long-Term Obli-
gations Account Group. Included among these liabilities are the noncurrent portions of liabilities result-
ing from debt issuances, compensated absences, judgments, leases, and workers' compensation benefits.
Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those
funds.

As discussed in NOTES 11 and 12, bonds issued by the Ohio Building Authority (OBA) to finance
State-related projects are reported as special obligation bonds in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group while OBA bonds issued to finance local government projects for State purposes are
reported as revenue bonds in the internal service funds.

L. Compensated Absences

State employees earn vacation leave, sick leave, and personal leave at various rates within limits speci-
fied under collective bargaining agreements or under law. Such leave is liquidated in cash, under certain
restrictions, either annually in December, or at the time of termination from State employment. For gov-
ernmental funds, the liability for compensated absences is reported in the General Long-Term Obliga-
tions Account Group. For proprietary fund types, the liability for compensated absences is reported as a
current accrued liability.

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 43, Accounting
for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulated rights to receive sick
pay benefits. However, a liability is recognized for that portion of accumulated sick leave benefits that
is estimated to be taken as "terminal leave" prior to retirement.

M. Reservations/Designations of Fund Equity

Reservations
Reserves represent those portions of the fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or are legally re-
stricted to a specific future use.

Designati

Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources,
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N. Self-Insurance

In general, the State is self-insured for health care claims, workers' compensation, vehicle liability, and
public fidelity blanket bonds and, except for certain coverages, is substantially uninsured for property
losses and tort liability claims.

0. Intergovernmental Revenues/Receivables

Intergovernmental revenues primarily represent resources from reimbursement-type grants received
from the federal government. Intergovernmental receivables and revenues are recorded when the related
grant expenditures/expenses are incurred.

P. Interfund Transactions
The State records the following types of transactions among funds:

Operating Transfers — Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as “operating trans-
fers-in” by the recipient fund and as “operating transfers-out” by the disbursing fund.

Transfers of Expenditures (Reimbursements) — Reimbursements of expenditures made by one fund for

another that are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in
the reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers — Nonroutine or nonrecurring transfers between funds that are reported as
additions to or deductions from fund equity.

Quasi-external Transactions — Charges or collections for services rendered by one fund to another that
are recorded as revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses of the disbursing fund.

A summary of the State’s interfund receivables and payables, as of June 30, 1988, is presented in
NOTE 7.

Q. Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned “Memorandum Only” to indi-
cate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present
financial position, results of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity with GAAP.
Neither are such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the
aggregation of this data.
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NOTE2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND REPORTING PRACTICES

During fiscal year 1988, the State chan ged its basis of accountin
the cash basis to the modified accrual basis for governmental an
crual basis for proprietary funds, including the valuation of mos

g for financial reporting purposes from
d expendable trust funds and to the ac-
t fixed assets. These changes include

adding component units to the reporting entity, the recognition of taxes, intergovernmental and other re-
ceivables, the valuation of assets based on cost, the appropriate depreciation accumulated to date and
charged to the proprietary funds' operations, the recognition of a Medicaid liability and other liabilities,
and the establishment of the General Fixed Assets and General Long-Term Obligations account groups,
as of July 1, 1987. Information on fixed assets, depreciation, and capital lease liabilities for the Ohio
Penal Industries, Telecommunications, and Ohio Data Network internal service funds, however, was

not available, as of July 1, 1987.

Accordingly, fund balances and retained earnings, as of July 1, 1987, have been restated for the changes
to conform to GAAP. These restatements had the following effect on fund balances/retained earnin gs
and the General Fixed Assets and General Long-Term Obligations Account Groups (amounts expressed

in thousands):

Balances
(Deficits),
as of

Adjustments to
Reflect Increases Reflect Increases
June 30, 1987, (Decreases) Due to (Decreases) from
As Previously Changes in Basis

Adjustments to

Changes in

Balances
(Deficits),
as of

July 1, 1987,
Reporting Entity  As Restated

Fund Type Reported of Accounting

Governmental Funds:

General Revenue ........................._ $ 633202 $ (633,202)

General.......oooooveevero 712,084

Special Revenue ........................._._ 1,023,512

Debt Service ... 110,564 30,714

Other ... 1,025,760 (1,025,760)

Capital Projects ..........cocoovovoo.. 142,857 (26,703)
Proprietary Funds:

ENterprise ..........oooooovvvveemoo 399,525 (3,157,242)

Internal Service ............................ 25,907
Fiduciary Funds:

Expendable and Pension Trust ........ 143,650

Agency and Distribution.................... 210,196 (210,196)
Account Groups:

General Fixed Assets ... 1,673,238

General Long-Term Obligations ....... 1,433,057

$ ——

103
88,211
352,948

32,282

5,585
279,870

130,766

103,338
2,852,277

$

712,187
1,111,723
494,226
148,436

(2,752,132
305,777

274,416

1,776,57¢
4,285,334
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NOTE 3 GAAP vs. BUDGETARY BASIS

Actual revenues, operating transfers-in, expenditures, encumbrances, and operating transfers-out on the
budgetary basis do not equal those reported on the GAAP basis in the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust
Fund. This inequality results primarily from basis differences in the recognition of accruals, deferred
revenue, interfund transactions, loan transactions, and from the budgetary basis of accounting for en-
cumbrances. On the budgetary basis, encumbrances are recognized as expenditures in the year encum-
bered, while on the modified accrual basis, expenditures are recognized when goods or services are
received regardless of the year encumbered. Another major difference between GAAP and budgetary
fund balances is an entity difference for those unbudgeted funds that do not require appropriations.

Budgetary expenditures in the accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances--Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represent original appropriations
modified by supplemental and amended appropriations.

A reconciliation of the fund balances recorded under the two bases for the General, special revenue, debt
service, and capital projects funds is presented on the following page.
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[} NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 198:
]
I NOTE 3 GAAPyvs. BUDGETARY BASIS (Continued)
, L iy
Reconciliation of GAAP Basis Fund Balances to Budgetary Basis Fund Balances
June 30, 1988
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances (Deficits) -
GAAP BaSiS.............ccocervverrroeeseeeeee $ 269,892 $(181,268) $ $(87,852)
BASIS DIFFERENCES
Revenue Accruals/Adjustments:
Taxes Receivable............c..eenvooee (551,286) (95,889) — --e-
Intergovernmental Receivables.................... .. (221,067) (124,481) —-—
Loans Receivable ...................cooooermrrereo - (1,831) nees -
Deferred Revenue..............vococeoeeo 173 52,219 o ----
Other Receivables................ooovomomvo (6,276) (17,797) - (986)
Due from Other Funds ..o (7,739) (85,814) --- (693)
SUBLOtal .....coovvvrerereeeeees e (786,195) _(273,593) (1.679)
Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments:
Accounts Payable.............cu..mveeveoooooo 47,008 107,936 ——— 3,017
Medicaid Claims Payable ..................... 337,165 -en -
Accrued Liabilities ..o 88,084 219,497 21,198
Due to Other Funds......oooooooovoveerree 74,155 14,308 — 1
Refund and Other Liabiltties.................... 343,939 37,351
Advances from Other Funds ... .. 420 722 ----
Encumbrances ... (35,608) _(135,284) - (23,953)
SUBLOMAl oo 855,163 244,530 263
Other Adjustments:
Fund Balance Reclassifications:
From Undesignated (Budgetary Basis)
to Reserved for Budget Stabilization ............ . 283,915 - - e
Other Reclassifications ... ... - 88,910 109,891
OthBT e (64) (23,234) (1)
SUBIOtal .o 283,851 65,676 109,891 (1)
Total Basis Differences ... 352,819 36,613 109,891 (1,417)
ENTITY DIFFERENCES
Ohio Turnpike Commission .................... - (2,343)
Ohio Public Facilities Commission ................ ... (76)
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority .................. . (5,183)
Ohio Water Development Authority ............coo......... - (4,440)
Ohio Housing Finance AQENCY .. -e- (8,690) o
Ohio Student Loan Commission............... . .. ---- (37,214) --e
Total Entity Differences .......................... (76) (57,870)
Total Basis and Entity Differences ... 352,743 (21,257) 109,891 (1,417)
f Unreserved/Undesignated and Designated for
5 Budget Stabilization Fund Balances {Deficits) -
j Budgetary Basis ... $ 622,635 $(202,525) $ 109,891 $(89,269)
| e ——
!
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NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A. Legal Requirements

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasurer of State and the State Board of Deposit are gov-
erned by the Uniform Depository Act, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised Code, which requires that monies
held by the State be maintained in one of the following three classifications:

Active Deposits — Those monies required to be kept in a cash or near-cash status to meet current
demands. Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the State’s treasury or in any of the follow-

ing:

A commercial account that is payable or withdrawable, in whole or in part, on demand;
A negotiable order of withdrawal account;

A money market deposit account; or

A designated warrant clearance account.

[nactive Deposits — Those monies not required for use within the current two-year period of designa-
tion of depositories. Inactive monies may be deposited or invested only in certificates of deposit matur-
ing not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories.

Interim Deposits — Those monies not required for immediate use, but needed before the end of the
current period of designation of depositories. Interim deposits may be deposited or invested in the
following instruments:

Bonds, notes, or other obligations of or guaranteed by the United States, or those for which the
faith of the United States is pledged for the payment of principal and interest;

Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any federal government
agency, or the Export-Import Bank of Washington;

Repurchase agreements in the securities enumerated above;

Interim deposits in the eligible institutions applying for interim monies;
Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

The Treasurer of State’s investment pool;

Prime-rated corporate commercial paper, up to a $50 million investment limit;

Linked deposits, reduced-rate deposits at financial institutions that provide reduced-rate loans to
small businesses, as authorized under Section 135.63, Ohio Revised Code; and

Auricultural linked deposits, reduced-rate deposits at financial institutions placed on or before
Tune 30, 1987, that provide reduced-rate loans to farmers, as authorized under Section 135.74,
Ohio Revised Code.
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NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The State’s deposits must be held in insured depositories approved by the State Board of Deposit and
must be fully collateralized.

In some cases, deposit and investment policies of certain individual funds and component units are
established by Ohio Revised Code provisions other than the Uniform Depository Act and by bond trust

other investments.

B. Deposits

As of June 30, 1988 (December 31, 1987, for the Ohio Water Development Authority, Ohio Bureau of
Workers' Compensation, State Highway Patrol Retirement System, State Parking Commission, and Ohio

C. Investments

The State categorizes investments to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the State at year
end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured, registered, or held by the State or its agent in the
State’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the counterparty’s
trust department or its agent in the State’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered invest-
ments held by the counterparty, its trust department, or its agent, but not in the State’s name.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The following summary identifies the level of credit risk assumed by the State and the total carrying
amount and market value of the State’s investments, as of June 30, 1988 (December 31, 1987, for the
Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation, Ohio Air Quality Development Authority, the Ohio Water

Development Authority, State Highway Patrol Retirement System, State Parking Commission, and Ohio

Turnpike Commission) (amounts expressed in thousands):

Carrying Amount

- Market
Ufﬁf %Ygfngrgsgtr?rgg%?t;%r;cy Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total Value
obligations .....cccocvviiniveiis e, $ 5,411,599 $ 33,514 $159,710 $ 5,604,823 $5,604,168
Municipal obligations ......................... 100,732 100,732 100,732
Common and preferred stock ............ 1,367,123 1,367,123 1,375,205
Corporate bonds and notes ............... 1,578,209 1,578,209 1,574,437
Repurchase agreements ................... 91,180 55,752 146,932 146,932
Commercial paper ...c...coeovveeconnenn... 533,050 533,050 533,050
Mortgage 1oans ........cooveveevveenn, 498,379 498,379 497,711
Other investmemtS.........c.c.ccovvevveveenn. 107 4,012 4,119 4,119
Total .o, $9,479,647 $33,514 $320,206 $ 9,833,367 $ 9,836,354
Mutual funds ..o 210,253 210,244
Realestate ......coocooevivveeneisei, 158,568 158,568
Investment in limited partnership ....... 1,173 1,173
Deposit with federal government ....... 303,850 303,850
Security deposits ...........ccoveeeveeren... 252,443 252,443
Deposit with deferred
compensation plan ........................ 175,811 175,811
Total .o $ 10,935,465 $10,938,443

The total carrying amount of the State's deposits and investments, as of June 30, 1988, reported in the

State's financial statements is $1 1,055,164,000. The total carrying amount of the State's deposits and in-

vestments categorized and/or disclosed in this Note is $11,289,296,000. A reconciliation of the differ-

ence follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Deposits Investments Total

Cash equity with Treasurer

(Restricted and unrestricted) ..., $ 37,357 $ 2,677,036 $ 2,714,393
Cash with custodian ..o 76,408 157 76,565
Deposit with federal government ... 303,850 303,850
SeCurity dePOSItS ..............ooveveomreooo 252,443 252,443
INVESIMENtS ..o 392 6,905,970 6,906,362
Deposit with deferred compensation plan .......... 175,811 175,811
Restricted Assets:
Cash and investments with custodian .................... 8,802 442 576 451,378
Dedicated investments ... -ee- 174,362 174,362
Ca”ying amount per combined balance sheet ... 122,959 10,932,205 11,055,164
Outstanding warrants and other openitems............ 230,872 3,260 234,132
Total deposits/investments categorized

and/or disclosed ... $ 353,831 $ 10,935,465 $ 11,289,296

43 i




et s oot st

STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1988

NOTES LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable reported in the special revenue funds, as of June 30, 1988, consisted of the followin g
(amounts expressed in thousands):

Community
and Economic Student Loan  Natural
Development Education Commission Resources Other Total

Economic Development ............ $ 132264 ¢ - $ $ $ - $132,264
Minority Business .................._ 3,769 - ---- - 3,769

: Emergency School

\ Advancement ...................._ 12,573 12,573

% Public School Building.................. 20,322 20,322
Student Loans ........................ 8,989 8,989
Ohio Housing Finance Agency.... 4,894 4,894
Natural Resources ... ———- - - 1,239 1,239
Agriculture ... 52 52
Total ... $ 140,927 $32.895 $ 8,989 $ 1239 $ 52 $184,102

NOTE 6 TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable, as of June 30, 1988, consisted of the following (amounts expressed in thousands):

Special Debt
General Revenue Service Total
Income Taxes ............ccoooooomnivi $ 237,173 $ 29,160 $ $ 266,333
Sales Taxes .............oooeoommvoo 297,545 14,449 311,894
Motor Fuel Taxes ... 89,429 8,758 98,187
Other Taxes ........oc.ouevveoeevceon 16,568 264 17,286 34,118
Total o $ 551,286 $ 133,302 $ 26,044 $ 710,632

As of June 30, 1988, refund liabilities related to income and corporation franchise taxes, totalin g $378
million, were reported as "Refund and Other Liabilities," of which $342 million was recorded in the
General Fund and $36 million was recorded in the special revenue funds.
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NOTE 7 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES/OPERATING TRANSFERS

Interfund receivables and payables, and operating transfers, as of June 30, 1988, are summarized s fol-
lows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Operating Operating

Fund Type/Fund Due from  Dueto Transfers-in  Transfers-out ;
GONEIAL.........oci it $ 7738 $ 74155 $ 292588 § 499,170
Special Revenue: ‘
EQUCALION ..ottt e e oo 1,268 753 305,304 102
Highway Safely ... 13,505 1,771 89,806 1
Highway Operating ...........cccovceevnneiiieicre e, 1,500 904 294,555 93,537
Ohio Turnpike COMMISSION ....ovoveviviiereiereeeeee s - 534 -e-e 43,064
Revenue Distribution .......coocoovvovononroene oo 67,597 151 18 298,145
Other Special Revenue Funds ........occoorvvnvveioe, 2,241 11,085 6,661 13,956
SUBLOTA] ..o e 86,111 15,198 696,344 448,805
Debt Service:
Economic Development Bond Service ..o .- ——a 17,934
Development Bond Retirement ..............cocccovevvvmnnn... 18,944
Public Improvements Bond Retirement ....................... --ee 18,653
Special Distribution Bond Retirement ......................... - 13,000
Vietnam Conllict Compensation Bond Retirement ....... 1 22,358
Ohio Public Facilities COMmISSION ...c...covvovvvovo, 258,272
Ohio Building AUthOTItY .......cvoeciieeveee oo 133,618 —-em 79,810 —e-
Bureau of Employment Services ..............coovevooo . ---- 48,608
Other Debt Service Funds..........ocommovoeoooeoo 457 11,686
SUBIOLaAl e 134,076 - 489,265
Capital Projects:
Ohio Turnpike COMMISSION ........o.vevoeoeeeoo —eem —-ne 44,682 -
Ohio Building AUthority .............coovovvoeeemremeo 6,495 e 110,467
Other Capital Projects FUNGS .............oooooeioooo 693 1 10,000 10,000
SUBIOMAl ... 7,188 1 165,149 10,000
Enterprise;
LIQUOT CONMIOL ... 5 119 - 67,935
Ohio Lottery CommISSION .......c.ovvevemreoeooooo 1,746 2,131 ---- 506,973
SUBLOtAL ... 1,751 2,250 mee- 574,908
Internal Service:
Ohio Building AUtNOTIY oo - 140,113 -—-- 110,467
Ohio Data Cemter .........oomvmmmmmreooo 16,452 255 e
Other Internal Sarvice Funds oo 15,815 1,530 -
SUBOal .o 32,267 141,898 110,467
Expendable Trust:
Employment Services ..o 11 -
Pension Trust:
State Highway Patrol.........ooooo 1,040
Agency.
Holding and Distribution ... 32,319
Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits ... 306 10,962
Other Agency Funds oo 1,227
Subtotal 1,533 43,281
Subtotal - Tryst and Agency Funds........................... 2,584 43,281
Total per Financial Statements ... 271,716 276,783 1,643,346 1,643,350
Reconciliation for Timing Differences for Funds with
Decembar 31, 1987, Fiscal Year Ends ... . . . 7,645 2,578 4
Reconcijad Fotal $ 279,361 $ 279,361 $ 1643350 ¢ 1,643350
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NOTE 8 FIXED ASSETS

A summary of fixed assets by category follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Internal General Fixed

Enterprise Service Assets

LANG oo $ $ - $ 144,996
BUBINGS ..o 1,927 959,310
Improvements other than BUIdINGS ......ocvo e 7,245 e 63,668
Machinery and equIPMent ............oc..oovoecomerr 60,543 2,631 126,088
SO VBRICIBS ...oooocevv e 140,128
CONSHIUCHON-IN-PIOGIBSS .......cococevereveeeeeseossooooons o 643,384

SUBIOMAL ..o 67,788 4,558 2,077,574
Less: Accumulated depreciation................vweeereeeeemreooo (33,968) (1,949)
Ot e $ 33,820 $ 2,609 $ 2,077,574

For the Ohio Penal Industries, Telecommunications, and Ohio Data Network internal service funds,
information is not available on fixed assets, accumulated depreciation, and depreciation expense. Ac-
cordingly, such amounts for these funds are not included above or in the accompanying financial state-
ments. The effects of these omissions on the accompanying financial statements cannot be determined.
Management is assembling the necessary records to permit fixed asset reporting in conformity with
GAAP.

No projects were under construction, for the year ended June 30, 1988, that resulted in capitalized
interest for the proprietary fund types.

State capital appropriations to State-assisted universities and colleges are not reflected in the assets
above, but are generally capitalized and reported in the respective financial statements of those entities.

Changes in general fixed assets for the year ended June 30, 1988, were as follows (amounts expressed in
thousands):

Balance Balance

July 1, 1987 Additions Retirements June 30, 1388
Land ..o $ 141,759 $ 3408 $ 171 $ 144,998
BUIlAINGS ..o ‘ 937,687 29,059 7,436 959,310
Improvements other than buildings .................. 52,993 10,675 63,668
Machinery and equipment ... 122,465 10,588 6,965 126,088
State vehicles ..o 128,213 21,339 9,424 140,128
Construction-in-progress ... 393,459 271,572 21,647 643,384
TOtal e $ 1,776,576 $ 346,641 $ 45643 § 2077574
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NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS

All part-time and full-time employees and elected officials of the State are eligible to be covered by one
of the following retirement plans:

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)
State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)
State Highway Patrol Retirement System (SHPRS)

The payrolls for State employees covered by PERS, STRS, and SHPRS for the year ended June 30,
1988, were $1.29 billion, $29 million, and $39 million, respectively; the State's total covered payroll
was $1.36 billion.

A. PERS and STRS

Both PERS and STRS are cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement systems.

Participants in PERS, who retire at age 60 with five or more years of service credit or at any age with 30
or more years of service credit, are eligible to annual retirement benefits. The benefit is based on 2.1
percent of final average salary multiplied by the years of service credit. Persons retiring before age 65
with less than 30 years of service credit receive a percentage reduction in benefit amounts. Retirement
benefits vest after five years of credited service. PERS also provides survivor and disability benefits.
PERS benefits are established under Chapter 145, Ohio Revised Code.

Participants in STRS, who retire after 30 years of credited service regardless of age, or at or after age 55
with 25 years of credited service, or at or after age 60 with five years of credited service, are entitled to a
maximum annual retirement benefit, payable in monthly installments for life, equal to the greater of the
“two-percent formula benefit” or the “money-purchase benefit” calculation.

Under the “two-percent formula benefit” calculation, the maximum annual retirement allowance s equal
10 two percent of an average of a member’s three highest years’ salary multiplied by the member’s
number of years of credited service (maximum of 45 years). Under the “money-purchase benefit”
calculation, a member’s lifetime contributions, plus interest at specified rates, are matched by an equal
amount from contributed employer funds. This total is then divided by an actuarially determined annu-
ity factor to determine the maximum annual retirement allowance. Annually, after retirement, STRS
benefits are increased three percent if the cost of living, as measured by the Consumer Price Index, has
increased at three percent on a cumulative basis. STRS also provides death, survivor, and disability,
health care, and supplemental benefits. STRS benefits are established under Chapter 3307, Ohio Re-
vised Code.

Employer and employee required contributions to PERS and STRS are established under the Ohio
Revised Code and are based on percentages of covered employees’ gross salaries, which are calculated
annually by the retirement systems’ actuaries. Contributions required and made for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1988, are summarized below:

~ontribution Rates — Fiscal Y
Employee Share Employer Share

PERS 8.50% 13.71%

STRS 8.75% 14.00%
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NOTE9 PENSION PLANS ( Continued)

Contributed Amounts — Fiscal Year 1988
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Employee Share  Employer Share
PERS $ 102,051 $ 184,757
STRS $ 2510 $ 4,017

The “pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension
benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be
payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure, which is the actuarial pres
value of credited projected benefits, is intended to assist financial statement users in assessing a pensi
plan’s funding status on a going-concern basis and progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to
pay benefits when due and in making comparisons among public employee retirement systems and
employers. The PERS and STRS do not make separate measurements of assets and pension benefit
obligation for individual employers.

Therefore, the pension benefit obli gation determined through an actuarial valuation, the net assets
available for benefits, and the unfunded pension benefit obligation for PERS and STRS, as a whole, a1
presented below (amounts expressed in thousands):

PERS, STRS,
as of December 31, 1986 as of July 1, 1988
Pension benefit obligation $ 13,284,000 $ 19,324,598
Net assets available for benefits
(valued at cost) 10,841,200 14,258,680
Unfunded pension benefits obligation $_ 2442800 $ 5065918

The market value of net assets available for benefits for PERS was $11.31 billion at December 31, 198
the market value of net assets available for benefits for STRS at July 1, 1988, was unavailable. Actuar-
ial valuations are calculated annually by the retirement systems’ actuaries.

Occasionally, the General Assembly increases benefit payments to the current PERS and STRS retirees
In certain instances, concurrent with the passage of such legislation, a provision for payment of these
benefits through State appropriations is made. The State paid $4 million and $6 million to PERS and
STRS, respectively, for benefit increases during the year ended June 30, 1988. Funding for these benef
increases is on a pay-as-you- go basis by the State.

The State’s contribution to PERS represented 24.91 percent of total PERS contributions durin g calenda
year 1987 of all participating entities. The State’s contribution to STRS represented 0.59 percent of tot:
STRS contributions of all participating entities for its fiscal year ended June 30, 1988.

Available ten-year historical trend information showing each retirement system’s progress in accumulat
ing sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented in the PERS and STRS financial reports, as
of December 31, 1987, and June 30, 1988, respectively, which are the most recent data available.
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NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS (Continued)

B. SHPRS

SHPRS was established in 1944 by the General Assembly as a single-employer, defined benefits pen-
sion plan. SHPRS is authorized under Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, to provide retirement and dis-

ability benefits to retired members and survivor benefits to qualified dependents of deceased members of

the Ohio State Highway Patrol.

SHPRS' general administration and management is vested in a six-member retirement board, which
consists of three elected members and three statutory members. The board appoints an executive direc-
tor, actuary, investment advisor, investment monitor, and other employees.

SHPRS membership consisted of the following, as of December 31, 1987:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits and terminated employees entitled to

benefits but not yet receiving them ..............cooveooemoeoeeee 578
Current employees:
VESTE ..o e 242
NONVESTE ..ot 1,013
TOTA 1ttt e e 1,833

Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, requires contributions by active members and the Ohio State High-
way Patrol. The employee contribution rate is established by the General Assembly, and any change in
the rate requires legislative action. The employer contribution rate is established by the SHPRS Retire-
ment Board and certified to the State of Ohio every two years. By law, the employer rate may not ex-
ceed three times the employee contribution rate. Active members and the Ohio State Highway Patrol
are required to contribute nine percent and 24.66 percent, respectively, of active member payroll. Con-
tributions may be refunded to a member who terminates employment with the Ohio State Highway
Patrol or to the member’s beneficiary following the member’s death.

SHPRS Benefits

Members are eligible for normal retirement benefits upon reaching age 52 and accumulating at least 20
years of Ohio State Highway Patrol service credit. The benefits are a percentage of the member’s final
average salary, the average of the member’s three highest salaried years. The percentage is determined
by multiplying 2.5 percent times the first 20 years of service plus two percent times the next five years
plus 1.5 percent for each year in excess of 25 years of service. A member’s pension cannot exceed 72
percent of the final average salary. Early retirement with reduced benefits is available upon reaching
age 48 with 20 years of service credit.

In addition to the retirement benefits, SHPRS also provides for disability, survivor, and health care
benefits. Qualified dependents of a deceased member are eligible for monthly survivor benefits. All
members receiving a benefit from SHPRS are eligible to receive medical insurance.
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Members with credited service from prior Ohio State Highway Patrol service, military service time prio
to employment, military service interrupting Ohio State Highway Patrol service, and full-time police or
fire service are eligible to purchase service credit for one or all of the related retirement plans. Effective
October 20, 1987, members of the SHPRS with prior participation in Ohio’s State Teachers Retirement
System, School Employees Retirement System, Public Employees Retirement System, or Cincinnati
Retirement System became eligible to purchase service credit for one or all of the related retirement
plans.

The amount shown as “pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present
value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and any step rate benefits,
estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is the actuar-
ial present value of credited projected benefits and is intended to help financial statement users in assess-
ing SHPRS’ funding status on a going-concern basis and its progress in accumulating sufficient assets to
pay benefits when due and in making comparisons among public employee retirement systems. The
measure is independent of the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to SHPRS.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation, as of
December 31, 1987. Actuarial valuations are calculated annually by SHPRS' actuaries. Significant
actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include the following:

Rate of return on the SHPRS investments of 7.5 percent, compounded annually, net of
administration expenses;

Projected salary increases of 5.5 percent, compounded annually, attributable to inflation;

Additional projected salary increases ranging from 0 to 4.2 percent a year attributable to
seniority and merit;

Post-retirement mortality life expectancies of members based on the 1971 Group Annuity
Mortality Male and Female Tables, projected to 1984;

Rates of withdrawal from active service before retirement for reasons other than death, rates
of disability and expected retirement ages developed on the basis of actual plan experience;

Health care costs are assumed to increase 5.5 percent annually;

if retired for disability;
Employer contributions paid in equal installments throughout the employer fiscal year; and

Pension benefits will increase after retirement in accordance with valuation assumptions at
December 31, 1987.
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NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS (Continued)

The total unfunded pension benefit obligation at December 31, 1987, was $57 million as follows
(amounts expressed in thousands):

pension Benefit Obligation:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits and terminated
employees Not receiving benefits ...............ccoovvineicc e $ 65,411

Current employees:

Accumulated employee contributions,

including allocated investment INCOME ............ccooevvivieeeeeeeeeeeeece e eeee e, 25,342
Employer-inanced VESIBA ...........c.ceiiviiiiieec e e e e 44,624
Employer-financed NONVESTEd.................oicuiiiiie e 53,920
Total pension benefit obligation..............ccccooiiiviiiiccce e 189,297

Net assets available for health care and
pension benefits, at cost

(market value is $156 MIllion) ..........c.ccccovvmvireiieceeeee e 150,827
Net assets available for benefits allocated

to health care DeNEfitS ...........ccoviiii e (18,410)
Net assets available for pension BENERItS ..............ccoovvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 132,417
Unfunded pension benefit oblgation ...............c.ocooeiieeeeeee oo $ 56,880

The pension benefit obligation shown above does not include an estimated obligation for health care
benefits, and accordingly, the net assets available for benefits is reduced by the amount applicable to
health care benefits to calculate the unfunded pension benefit obligation.

U Contributions Required and Contributions Made
SHPRS' funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates that,
expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to accumulate sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due. Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the
entry age actuarial funding method. SHPRS also uses the level percentage of payroll method to amor-
tize the unfunded liability over a closed 32-year period. A statutory cost-of-living contribution of

.5 percent of active member payroll is also required.
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NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS (Continued)

During calendar year 1987, contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined contri-
bution requirements determined through actuarial valuations performed at December 31, 1986. These
contributions consisted of the following (amounts expressed in thousands):

Percent of Active

Amount Member Payroli
NOrmal COStS ........comuvrmneerese e —— $ 9,668 25.11%
Amortization of the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability ..........ccoooveereeomeio 3,099 8.05
Statutory cost-of-living
COMTIBULONS ... 193 .50
TOtAl e e $ 12,960 33.66%

The available required two-year trend information follows:

1987 1986
Net assets available for benefits as a
percentage of pension benefit obligation 70.0% 71.3%
Unfunded pension benefit obligation as a
percentage of annual covered payroli 147.7% 131.3%
Employer contributions as a percentage
of annual covered payroll 24.7% 24.7%

SHPRS maintains its own accounting system sepaately from the State's and publishes a separate
publicly available component unit financial report. The available required 10-year historical trend
information showing the fund's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is
presented in that report, as of December 31, 1987.

In addition to providing pension benefits, SHPRS pays health insurance claims on behalf of all persons
receiving a monthly pension or survivor benefit and Medicare Part B basic premiums for those eligible
benefit recipients upon proof of coverage. The cost of retiree health care benefits is recognized as
claims are incurred and premiums are paid. The calendar year 1987 expense was $795 thousand.

Health care benefits are funded on an actuarial basis. During 1987, 3.03 percent and 1.02 percent of
active member payroll was allocated to fund health care normal costs and the amortization of the un-
funded actuarial accrued liability, respectively. The net assets available for benefits allocated to health
care cost at December 31, 1987, was $18 million.

The actuarial accrued liability for health care benefits, the portion of the present value of plan promises
to pay benefits in the future that are not covered by future normal cost contributions, was $29 million,
as of December 31, 1987.
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NOTE 10 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The State has pledged its faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation
bonds accounted for and included with obligations in the General Long-Term Obligations Account

Group.

At various times since 1921 Ohio voters, by 12 constitutional amendments (the last adopted in 1987),
have authorized the incurrence of general obligation debt for the construction and improvement of State
facilities and highways, compensation for military service during the Vietnam Conflict, research and
development of coal technology, and local infrastructure improvements. In practice, general obligation
bonds are retired over periods of 10 to 35 years.

As of June 30, 1988, $3.96 billion in general obligation debt (excluding Highway Obligations discussed
below), had been authorized by constitutional amendment of which $2.48 billion had been issued and
$311 million was outstanding; the authorization to issue $233 million had expired.

Coal Development bonds may be issued as long as the outstanding principal amount does not exceed
$100 million.

Highway Obligations may be issued as long as the outstanding principal amount does not exceed $500
million. The aggregate of General Assembly authorizations, as of June 30, 1988, for Highway Obliga-
tions, was $1.18 billion, of which $1.07 billion had been issued and $446 million was outstanding. Ad-
ditional Highway Obligations may be issued from time to time, as authorized by the General Assembly,
as outstanding Highway Obligations are retired.

A 1987 constitutional amendment authorized the issuance of $1.2 billion of general obligation bonds for
infrastructure improvements (Infrastructure Bonds), of which no more than $120 million may be issued
inany year. As of June 30, 1988, no Infrastructure Bonds had been issued.

General obligation bonds outstanding, and bonds authorized but unissued, as of June 30, 1988, were as
follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Average
Net

Interest  Maturing Outstanding Authorized
Purpoge Issued Rates Through Balance But Unissued
Highway Obligations....................... 1969-88 4.3-7.4% 1998 $ 446,250 $ 111875
Highway Improvement................ 1969-71 4.4-6.2 1989 9,650
Improvement ... 1970-71 5.0-5.2 1992 54,900
Public improvements ... 1971-75 4.3-6.0 1995 68,100
Vietnam Conflict Compensation ...... 1974 5457 1989 25,000
DGVGIOpment ................................... 1968-72 43-59 1995 109,025
Coal Hesearch/Development .......... 1986 6.2 1996 44,200 50,000

mfrastructure - ——— S

1,200,000

$ 757125 $ 1,361,875
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NOTE 10 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (Continued)

Changes in general obligation bonds during the year ended June 30, 1988, are summarized in NOTE
Future general obligation debt service requirements, as of June 30, 1988, were as follows (amounts
expressed in thousands):

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
1989 .. $ 154,075 $ 42,138 $ 196,213
1990 ... e 131,025 33,725 164,750
1987 e 115,145 26,332 141,477
1992 95,900 20,018 115,918
1993 ., 71,205 14,775 85,980
Thereafter .............cooooevveeeeen 189,775 25,427 215,202
Total.....ooiieee e, $ 757,125 $ 162,415 $ 919,540

NOTE 11 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Special obligation bonds reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group have been a
thorized and issued by the Ohio Building Authority (OBA) and the Ohio Public Facilities Commissio
(OPFC). OBA bonds finance the capital costs of categories of facilities including correctional faciliti
and office buildings for State departments and agencies and, in some cases, related facilities for local
governments. OPFC bonds finance the cost of capital facilities for State-supported and State-assisted
stitutions of higher education, mental hygiene and retardation, and parks and recreation.

OBA bonds issued for State agencies are reflected as special obligation bonds, and OBA bonds issued
for related local government facilities are shown as revenue bonds (See NOTE 12).

OBA and OPFC bonds are secured by pledges of lease rental payments from biennial General Fund af
propriations, funds held by trustees pursuant to related trust agreements, and other receipts, as require«
by the respective bond documents.

Special obligation bonds outstanding, and bonds authorized but unissued, as of June 30, 1988, were as
follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Average
Net
Interest Maturing Outstanding Authorized
Organization Issued Rates Through Balance But Unissued
Ohio Building Authority .............. 1979-88 5.1-9.3% 2014 $ 921,296 $
(and variable
rates)
Ohio Public Facilities
Commission...............cocoo...... 1970-88 5.0-13.1% 2005 2,060,470 978,210

Total ..o, $ 2,981,766 $ 978,210
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NOTE 11  SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS (Continued)

Changes in special obligation bonds reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for
the year ended June 30, 1988, are summarized in NOTE 16. Future special obligation debt service re-
quirements, as of June 30, 1988, were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
1989 .. $ 142922 § 223581 $ 366,503
1990 e 163,589 212,461 366,050
1997 161,632 200,667 362,299
1992 i 174,108 188,271 362,379
L e T e e e 187,175 174,774 361,949
Thereafter .............ccccccovviiconnn... 2,162,340 1,082,801 3,245,141
Total oo, $ 2,981,766  $ 2,082,555 $ 5,064,321

In fiscal year 1988, the OPFC advance refunded certain Higher Education and Mental Health bonds with
two separate special obligation refundings. The OPFC issued $130 million and $72 million of special
obligation refunding bonds to advance refund $114 million and $80 million, respectively, of special
obligation bonds. The net proceeds of $200 million plus an additional $30 million of existing debt
service monies were used to purchase U.S. government securities, which were placed in irrevocable
trusts with an agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded principal. Asa
result, the refunded bonds are no longer considered to be outstanding and the corresponding principal
amounts have been removed from the total OPFC special obligation bond liability balance in the

General Long-Term Obli gations Account Group.

The OPFC advance refunded the Higher Education bonds to reduce its debt service payments over

18 years by $15 million and to obtain an economic gain of $9 million. The OPFC advance refunded the
Mental Health bonds to reduce its debt service payments over 11 years by approximately $21 million
and to obtain an economic gain of $7 million.

In prior years, OBA defeased certain bond issues by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable
trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account
assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the State's financial statements. As of
June 30, 1988, $340 million of OBA bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

NOTE 12 REVENUE BONDS

The State Constitution permits State agencies and authorities to issue bonds that are not supported by the
taith and credit of the State. These bonds pledge income derived from user fees and rentals on the

(OTC), Treasurer of State for the Ohio Department of Development's Economic Development Financing
Division (EDFD), State Parking Commission (SPQC), and Ohio Building Authority (OBA).
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OTC bonds financed the construction and acquisition of roadways (the Ohio Turnpike), and equipment,
OTC bonds are payable from OTC revenues, includin g tolls and other user charges.

Economic development bonds, issued by the Treasurer of State for the EDFD's Direct Loan Program,
provide financing for loans and loan guarantees to businesses within the State, which cannot obtain con-

pledged to repay the bonds.

Some OBA revenue bonds finance the costs of office buildings and related facilities for shared use by
local governments. The principal and interest requirements on these bonds are paid from rentals re-
ceived.
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Revenue bonds outstanding, as of June 30, 1988 (December 31, 1987, for the SPC), net of unamortized
discounts as applicable to the proprietary fund types only, were as follows (amounts expressed in thou-

sands):
Interest Maturing Outstanding
Organization Issued Rates Through Balance
General Long-Term Obligations:
Ohio Turnpike Commission...................... 1984 8.5% 1992 $ 4,810
Economic Development/Treasurer
OF STALE i 1985-88 9.7-11.4 2007 162,070
Total oo $ 166,880
Enterprise: B
State Parking Commission..............c....... 1963 4.0 2003 $ 1,374
Total oo $ 1,374
Internal Service: I —
Ohio Building Authority .............ccoevvinneen. 1985 5.5-9.8 2007 $ 56,039
TOMl e, $ 56,039

The outstanding balance of OBA's bonds, as reported above, includes current bonds payable of $1.646
million, which is reflected in "Refund and Other Liabilities" on the Combined Balance Sheet -- All Fund
Types and Account Groups, as of June 30, 1988.

The balance of revenue bonds outstanding for the proprietary fund types, as reported in this note for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1988, include unamortized bond discounts of $4 million.

Changes in revenue bonds reported in the General Long-term Obligations Account Group for the year
ended June 30, 1988, are summarized in NOTE 16.

Future revenue bond service requirements, as of June 30, 1988 (December 31, 1987, for the SPC and
OTC) were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

General Long-
Term Obligations

Account Group Enterprise Internal Service
Principal Interest ~ Principal  Interest  Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30,

1989 $ 2390 $ 17252 $ 184 $ 49 $ 1653 §$ 4572
1990 e 3,150 16,787 191 42 1,761 4,461
1991 e, 3,515 16,425 200 34 1,883 4,337
1992 3,935 16,020 207 25 2,022 4,200
T8 e 9,210 15,416 217 17 2,175 4,048
Thereafter ..., 144,680 139,924 417 8 50,720 39,513

Portion of bonds called,
but not redeemed ................. 19

Tetal $ 166,880 $221,824 $ 1435 $ 175 $60.214 $61,131
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The State of Ohio by action of the General Assembly created various financin ¢ authorities for the
expressed purpose of making available to non-profit and, in some cases, for-profit private entities lower
cost sources of capital financing for facilities and projects found to be for a public purpose. Fees arc gs-
sessed to recover related processing and application costs incurred. The authorities’ debt instrument«
represent limited obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. Most of the
bonds are secured by the property financed. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of acquired
property transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance. This debt is not deemed to constitute a deht
of the State or pledge of the faith and credit of the State. Accordingly, these bonds are not reflected in
the accompanying financial statements.

As of June 30, 1988 (December 31, 1987, for the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority and the
Ohio Water Development Authority), revenue bonds, net of advance refunded bonds of $714 million,
and notes outstanding, as reported in the following organizations' financial statements that represenied
“no commitment” debt for the State were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Outstanding
Organization Amount
Ohio Air Quality Development AULhOTIRY ..o $ 1,550,436
Ohio Housing Finance AGENCY e 1,280,034
(net of discount)
Ohio Water Development AUNOTIYY ... 881,502
(net of discount)
TOMAL oo $ 3,711,972

NOTE 14 LEASE OBLIGATIONS

As of June 30, 1988, $66 million and $30 million of lease obligations (includin £ accrued interest) were
payable from the State Data Center and the Telecommunications internal service funds, respective!y, for
the purchase of data-processing equipment and software, and a telecommunications system upgrade,
financed through a financing lease (ultimately fractionalized by the sale of certificates of participation).

Under the financing arrangement, the State is required to make lease payments. Those lease paynients
approximate the interest and principal payments made by a trustee to certificate holders.
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Future minimum lease commitments, as of June 30, 1988, were as follows (amounts expressed in

thousands):
Principal Interest Total
vear ending June 30,
198D e $ 12,105 $ 6,700 $ 18,805
1990 e 16,935 5,859 22,794
19971 19,700 4,515 24,215
1992 e 10,940 3,302 14,242
1993 e 9,705 2,539 12,244
Thereafter .o e 25,895 2,560 28,455
Total ..o $ 95,280 $ 25,475 $ 120,755

NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

As of June 30, 1988, other long-term obligations of the State reported in the General Long-Term Obliga-
tions Account Group were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Compensated absences (A) .......c.oeoveeeeeeoeeonn, $ 113,392
Lease agreements (B) .o..ooveveeveoeeeeeeooeeooeeoe, 7,227
Judgments (C) covvevoniiniiieeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 15,005
Workers' Compensation Obligation (D) ............. 258,890
Deferred interest (E) ........coveveeeeevovereeeeoeoeen, 40,021
Employee Severance Anticipation

Compensation Plan (B) .........c.coooeeevmrererere, 7,874
Total Other General Long-Term Obligations ...... $ 442,409

A. Compensated Absences

Generally, employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of 3.1 hours every two weeks for the first five years
of employment, up to a maximum rate of 7.7 hours every two weeks after 20 years of employment. Em-
ployees may accrue a maximum of three years vacation leave credit. At termination or retirement, em-
ployees are paid at their full rate 100 percent of unused vacation leave, personal leave, and compensa-
tory time and 50 percent of unused sick leave.

Inorder to lessen the impact of terminal leave pay on a given State department’s budget, an accrued
leave funding program was instituted by law in 1982. State agencies must contribute a percentage of
£ross payroll to a common pool of resources from which terminal leave expenditures/expenses are paid.
The umount of cash equity with Treasurer and related interest receivable available to satisfy terminal
Pay claims at June 30, 1988, was $67 million. These and related assets are reported as part of the Pay-
roll Withholding and Fringe Benefits Agency Fund.

cm
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The compensated absence liability for proprietary funds is reported net of their portion of accrued le.ve
funding and is reflected in accrued liabilities. The compensated absence liability for governmental
funds is also reported net of their portion of the accrued leave funding and is reported as part of the Gen-
eral Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

The gross compensated absences liability, as of June 30, 1988, was $189 million of which $15 million is
allocable to the proprietary funds and $174 million is allocable to the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. The net (after reduction of the $67 million) compensated absence liability, as of

June 30, 1988, was $122 million, of which $9 million is reported in the proprietary funds and

$113 million is reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

B. Lease Agreements

The State leases office buildings and office and computer equipment. Although the lease terms vary,
most leases are renewable subject to biennial appropriations by the General Assembly. If the likelihood
of the exercise of a fiscal funding clause in the lease agreement is in the judgment of management
remote, then the lease is considered noncancelable for financial reporting purposes and is reported as a
fund expenditure/expense for operating leases or in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
or appropriate proprietary fund types for capital leases.

Assets acquired through capital leasing are valued at the lower of fair market value or the present value
of the future minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease. Capital lease obligations for the
proprietary fund types are reported in those funds as long-term obligations. The related assets and
depreciation of these assets are included in the proprietary funds. Capital lease obligations for the gov-
ernmental fund types are reported in the General Lon g-Term Obligations Account Group and the related
assets are reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.

Operating leases (leases on assets not recorded in the combined balance sheet) contain various renewal
options as well as some purchase options.

Any escalation clauses, sublease rentals, and contingent rents are considered immaterial to the future
minimum lease payments and current rental expenditures. Operating lease payments are recorded as
expenditures or expenses of the related funds when paid or incurred.

For the Telecommunications and Ohio Data Network internal service funds, information is not available
to report capital leases and the related fixed assets, accumulated amortization and amortization expense,
and required lease and noncash financing and investing activities disclosures in conformity with GAAP.
Accordingly, such amounts for these funds are not included below or in the accompanying financial
statements. The effects of these omissions on the accompanying financial statements cannot be deter-
mined. Management is assembling the necessary records to permit capital lease reporting in conformity
with GAAP.
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VOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The total operating lease expenditures/expenses for fiscal year 1988 were approximately $14 million.
Future minimum lease commitments for operating leases and capital leases judged to be noncancelable,
45 of June 30, 1988, were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

CAPITAL LEASES
General
Operating Long-Term Enterprise
Leases Obligations Funds
Fiscal year ending June 30,
11663 $10,712 $ 3,734 $ 104
L L 1,877 3,038 104
L S 1,624 1,981 67
1992 e 1,377 740 3
1993 e 1,216 46
Thereafter ... 2,244 --- o
Total minimum lease payments ......................... $ 19,050 9,539 278
Less: Amount representing interest ........................_ 2,312 32
Present value of net minimum lease
PAYMENTS oot $ 7,227 $ 246

As of June 30, 1988, the State had the following fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation for pro-
prietary funds and exclusive of the capital leases of the Telecommunications and Ohio Data Network
internal service funds) under capital leases (amounts expressed in thousands):

General

Long-Term

Obligations Enterprise Total
Equipment ...........ccoovoeee $ 6,929 $ 302 $ 7,231
VehiCles ..o, 298 S 298
Total e $ 7,227 $ 302 $ 7,529

Amortization expense for the enterprise funds is included with depreciation expense.

C. Judgments

The Ohio Department of Education has been involved with several school desegregation court cases
filed against the State by various local boards of education. In cases where the Judgment went against
the State, the courts decided that the State was responsible for sharing in all past and future desegrega-
tion costs. As of June 30, 1988, the State was responsible for $15 million in past desegregation costs,
which is recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. The total liability for future
deseuregation costs cannot be estimated since the State must share in 50 percent of costs for as long as
deseore gation is required. However, the Ohio Department of Education estimates that, as of

June 30, 1988, the State will pay approximately $21 million each year that desegregation is required.
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

For information on the State's loss contingencies arising from pending litigation and asserted claims,
NOTE 21.

D. Workers' Compensation Obligation

The State is permitted to pay its Workers' Compensation liability on a terminal funding (pay-as-you-g
basis. As a result, the Bureau of Workers' Compensation (BWC) recognized an unbilled premium
receivable for the State's portion of its actuarially determined liability for compensation. The $259
million reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group represents BWC's estimate of
the State's portion of the long-term obligation.

E. Deferred Interest and Employee Severance Anticipation Compensation Plan

The Ohio Bureau of Employment Services had a $40 million liability, as of June 30, 1988, for interest
payable on unemployment compensation advances from the U.S. Treasury. This liability is recorded i
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group as the conditions of the advance require that the
obligation be satisfied from governmental funds rather than the Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund,
The $40 million in interest was subsequently paid by the State on September 29, 1988.

The Ohio Turnpike Commission has adopted by resolution an "Employee Severance Anticipation -
Compensation Plan" (Plan), which will provide severance pay to each eligible employee whose employ
ment by the Commission is terminated as a direct result of the outstanding bonds being paid and the
Turnpike Project No. 1 being turned over to the State of Ohio as a toll-free road pursuant to current
Section 5537.21, Ohio Revised Code. The amounts paid will cover years of service, unused sick leave
and vacation leave, with such amounts being determined by the Plan's provision. The accrued liability
for vacation leave and unused sick leave, as of December 31, 1987, was $8 million and is reflected indl
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

F. Deferred Prize Awards

Prize awards payable in installments over future years are recorded at present value based upon inten
rates the Treasurer of State provides the Ohio Lottery Commission. The interest rates are reviewed b;
the Ohio Office of Budget and Management and represent the expected long-term rate of return on
assets restricted for the payment of deferred prize awards. Once established for a particular deferred:
prize award, the interest rate does not change with changes in the expected long-term rate of return
difference between the present value and gross amount of the obligations is amortized into income
the terms of the obligations using the interest method.
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The present value of future payments for unpaid prize awards, as of June 30, 1988, is summarized as
follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

vear Ending June 30,

TOBO et ettt et eb ettt e re e ann s $ 59,386
1OG0 .o ee e e ee et r e e s eb ettt ea e ra e et e et eas e 58,091
ST L= ET TSSO T OO R USSP 58,091
1GG2 oottt es 57,824
S 1= ITUT USROS RSO RRRR P 57,509
1994 through 1998 ... 282,175
1999 through 2003 .. .o 277,391
2004 through 2008 ........coeiieireeeecee e 148,268
2000 through 20171 .o e 541
O e e e e e 999,276
Unamottized DisCount.........cooveeiieiiieiriiiieccveeeevernene (445,094 )
Net Prize Liability .....cooooriiiriier e $ 554,182

The net prize liability for deferred prize awards, as reported above, includes a current net prize liability
of $18.175 million, which is reflected in "Refund and Other Liabilities" on the Combined Balance Sheet

-- All Fund Types and Account Groups, as of June 30, 1988.

Prizes can be claimed within one year of the drawing date for on-line games and within one year of the
close of a game for instant games. After the expiration of the statutory one-year period, the prize liabil-
ity is reduced for the unclaimed prizes.

G. Reserve for Compensation

The Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund provides benefits to employees for losses
sustained from job-related injury, disease, or death. The Bureau has computed a reserve for compensa-
tion, as of June 30, 1988, of $8.61 billion. The reserve, which includes estimates for reported claims and
claims incurred but not reported, is reflected as a liability on the Combined Balance Sheet -- All Fund
Types and Account Groups, as of June 30, 1988.
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NOTE 16 CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Changes in general long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 1988, are summarized as follow;
(amounts expressed in thousands):

General Special General
Obligation Obligation Revenue Long-Term
Bonds Bonds Bonds Obligations
(NOTE 10) (NOTE 11) (NOTE 12) (NOTE 15)
Balance, as of July 1, 1987 .........oovo . $ 735,530 $ 2,839,593 $ 228,710 $ 481,501
Additions:
DebtISSUes ........cooucuevevieeeeeeeee 170,000 460,900 10,000
Compensated Absences...............coovovvvoi., 13,587
Increase in Lease Obligations .................... 2,146
Increase in Judgments................................ neen nan 7,035
Increase in Workers' Compensation
ObIgation..........eeveeeveireeeeeeeee 2,806
Total Additions ...........c.ooveveeoeereeeo 170,000 460,900 10,000 25,574

Debt Retirements, Terminations, and

Defeasances ...............ccouueeveeeeeose 148,405 318,727 71,830
Decrease in Lease Obligations................... 3,230
Decrease in U.S. Treasury Deferred Interest —ae- --ns 48,606
Decrease in Judgments ..................oco... 12,830

Total Deductions .............ccoooeemeoeeo 148,405 318,727 71,830 64,666
Balance, as of June 30,1988 ......................... $ 757,125 $ 2,981,766 $ 166,880 $ 442,409

NOTE 17 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The State offers its employees and elected officials a deferred compensation plan created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 that is reported in the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund.

The plan, available to any public employee, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary and e
related tax liability until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
mination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made ]
available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the State (without be
restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to the claim of the State’s general
creditors. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the State in an
amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant.
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VOTE 17 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (C ontinued)

The State believes that it is unlikely that the assets will be used to satisfy the claims of general creditors
in the future and no assets have been used in the past to satisfy such claims.

The $175 million reported on the Combined Balance Sheet -- All Fund Types and Account Groups as
Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan represents State assets actually held by the plan administra-
tor. An additional $2 million is also reported as "Due from Other Funds" and represents contributions
by plan participants as of June 30, 1988, that had not yet been remitted to the plan administrator by the

State.

NOTE 18 ENTERPRISE FUNDS
A. Segment Information

The State has four enterprise funds, which provide for workers’ compensation insurance services, liquor
sales, lottery sales, and state parking facilities.

Segment information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1988, unless otherwise noted, was as follows
(amounts expressed in thousands):

Workers’ State
Compensation Liquor Ohio Parking Total
Fund Control Lottery Commission Enterprise
(12/31/87) Fund Commission  (12/31/87) Funds
Operating revenues .......................... $ 1,193559 $350,376 $ 1,411 056 $& 1872 $2956,863
Depreciation and amortization .......... 2,953 933 - 5,552 186 9,624
Operating income (10SS) .................. (575,051) 69,228 545,869 798 40,844
Operating transfers-out ................... 67,935 506,973 574,908
Netincome (108S) .....oooevvevov (18,547) 1,128 38,617 969 22,167
Fixed asset additions ... 4,507 2,750 3,261 2 10,520
Fixed asset disposals.................. 556 4,155 4,711
Net working capital ... _ 1,448,235 12,105 25,847 4,307 1,490,494
Increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents ......................... 571 (792) 69,597 78 69,454
Totalassets ... 6,743,853 31,417 650,995 8,104 7,434,369
Bonds and other long-term liabilities
Payable from operating revenues ... 8,610,148 1,374 8,611,522

Total BQUILY e (2,271,280) 16,199 72,240 6,554 (2,176,287
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NOTE 18 ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

B. Workers' Compensation Fund

The financial statements of the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation and the Industrial Commissior
of Ohio (Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund), as of and for the year ended December 3 1, 1987,
were examined by their independent auditors, who issued their report on their examination on
December 9, 1988. The accounting records of the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund are not
adequate to permit proper measurement of certain assets and liabilities, including estimates of reserves
for claims. In addition, the outcome of several litigation matters is uncertain and their auditors were n¢
able to apply sufficient auditing procedures to satisfy themselves as to the fairness of presentation of th
financial statements. Accordingly their auditors did not express an opinion on the financial statements
of the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund. For additional information, refer to the separate audit
report of the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation and the Industrial Commission of Ohio.,

NOTE 19 SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The independent auditors of the Ohio Bureau of Employment Services reported that certain expenditure
of its special revenue funds, which had been incurred and which were reimbursed under federal awards,
have been questioned in the amount of $51 million. The amount of expenditures, which may ultimately
be disallowed by grantor agencies and repaid by the Bureau, is not presently determinable, and no
provision has been made in the financial statements of the Special Revenue fund of the Bureau for the
effect, if any, of such repayment.

NOTE 20 RETAINED EARNINGS DEFICIT

A retained earnings deficit of $2.27 billion is reported for the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund,
as of June 30, 1988. Management believes the financial condition of the Workers' Compensation Fund
can be improved through the provisions of new legislation and current programs aimed at controlling -
medical claim costs and lost time compensation claim expenses and through increases in premiums.

The Telecommunications Internal Service Fund, has a retained earnings deficit of $13 million as of ‘
June 30, 1988. Management believes that a substantial portion, if not all, of the deficit balance will be:
eliminated when fixed asset and capital lease information becomes available and is reported in the
Telecommunications Fund.

NOTE 21 CONTINGENCIES

with the Attorney General, likely to have a material adverse impact on the financial position of any of
the State's fund types and account groups.
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VvOTE 21 CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Additionally, the State and its units are involved in certain other legal proceedings which, if decided
,dversely to the State, may require the State to make future expenditures for expanded services or
capital facilities or may impair future revenue sources. It is possible neither to determine the outcomes
of these proceedings nor to estimate the possible effects adverse decisions may have on the future ex-
penditures of revenue sources of the State.

* Under the terms of federal grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs have been and may be
questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants. Claims resulting from
such audits could lead to reimbursements to the grantor agencies. Management believes ultimate disal-
Jowances, if any, will be immaterial to all fund types and account groups.

NOTE 22 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to June 30, 1988, the State had the following major debt issues (amounts expressed in
thousands):

Average
Net
Interest
Organization Date of Issue Rates Amount Type of Debt
Ohio Building Authority:
State Facilities-Fountain Square/
State Office Building ......ccvveeveenennen. July 7, 1988 74% $ 52,160 Special Obligation
State Facilities Bond Anticipation
NOtES ..o v August 22, 1988 10.0 4,700 Special Obligation
Correctional Facilities .........occcvvvvveenns August 25, 1988 7.8 75,000 Special Obligation
Ohio Public Facilities Commission:
Parks and Recreation Facilities
Bond Anticipation Notes................... July 6, 1988 55 20,000 Special Obligation
Higher Education Facilities,
Series1988B .. .o September 29, 1988 7.1 115,000 Special Obligation
Mentai Health Facilities,
Series 1988A ..o September 29, 1988 7.3 40,000 Special Obligation
Treasurer of State:
Infrastructure Improvement ................ December 20, 1988 7.2 120,000  General Obligation

$ 426,860
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted 1
expenditure for designated purposes.

The Community and Economic Development Fund accounts for programs admin-

istered by the Department of Development, the Ohio Housing Finance Agency, the Ohio Air
Quality Development Authority, the Ohio Water Development Authority, and other various State
agencies, which are designed to assure the efficient use of resources for the State's economic

growth and development.

The Human Services F und accounts for public assistance programs primarily administered

by the Department of Human Services and various other State agencies, which provide financial
assistance, services, and training to those individuals and families who do not have sufficient re-

sources to meet their basic needs.

The Health Fund accounts for public health programs administered by the Department of
Health, which promote the prevention and treatment of diseases and illnesses through technical
assistance, health education, and research.

The Mental Health and Retardation Fund accounts for mental health care and retarda-

tion programs administered by the Department of Mental Health and the Department of Mental
Retardation and Developmental Disabilities, which provide assistance, services, and medical

care to those individuals with mental health and developmental disability problems.

The Employment Services Fund accounts for programs administered by the Ohio Burcau

of Employment Services, which provide unemployment benefits, Job placement services, and
training to eligible individuals.

The Education Fund accounts for programs administered by the Department of Education,
the Ohio Board of Regents, and other various State agencies, which prescribe the State's mini-
mum educational requirements and which provide funding and assistance to local school districts
for basic instruction and vocational and technical job training and to the State’s colleges and

universities for post-secondary education.

The Student Loan Commission F und accounts for the Federal Guaranteed Student Loan

Program and other programs administered by the Ohio Student Loan Commission, which pro-
vide financial assistance to eligible individuals attending higher educational institutions.

The Highw fety Fund accounts for public safety programs administered by the Depart

ment of Highway Safety, which are designed to enforce traffic-related laws for the purpose of
reducing accidents, deaths, injuries, and property damages on Ohio hi ghways.




SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)
The Highway Operating Fund accounts for programs administered by the Department of

Transportation, which provide for the planning and design, construction, and maintenance of

Ohio's highways and roads.

The Qhio Turnpike Commission Fund accounts for the general operations of the Ohio

Turnpike Commission, which is authorized by the Ohio General Assembly to construct, main-
tain, repair, police, and operate turnpike projects at such locations approved by the State.

The Natural Resources Fund accounts for environmental programs administered by the

Department of Natural Resources, the Environmental Protection Agency, and other various State
agencies, which promote, protect, and manage the State's natural resources and environment.

The Wildlife and Waterway Safety Fund accounts for programs administered by the

Departinent of Natural Resources' Divisions of Wildlife and Watercraft, which promote, protect,
and manage the State's wildlife and waterways and which provide technical assistance and

education to the public.

The Regulatory Fund accounts for programs administered by various State agencies, which
are designed to regulate industry, agriculture, commerce, and other activities conducted within

the State.

The Revenue Distribution Fund accounts for tax relief and aid to local government

programs, which derive funding from tax and other revenues levied, collected, and designated by
the State for these purposes.

The Other_Fund accounts for administrative and regulatory activities of various departmen-
tal programs and other miscellaneous State activities.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 1988

famounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer .. .......... ... ... .. ..

Cash with Custodian . .
lnvestments . ... ... ..

Taxes ............

Other . ...........

Advance Payments to Subrecipients . ............. ... .

Restricted Assets:
Cash and Investments

Other Assets . . .. ...,

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable . . . .
Accrued Liabilities . . . .

Refund and Other Liabilities ... ........ ... ... ... . ..
Advance from Other Funds . ................ ... . ..

Total Liabilities . . . . .

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Other ............

Other . ...........

COMMUNITY

AND ECONOMIC HUMAN
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES HEALTH
$ 123,960 62,765 $ 12,659
1,414 290 —
42,890 — —
— 12,433 7,615
140,927 — —
1,462 38 —
797 32 471
— 8,755 —
22,941 — —
$ 334,391 84,313 $ 20,745
$ 8,749 8,837 $ 6.864
4,497 4,340 712
115 3,334 273
1,180 20,523 892
— 1.761 -
525 — —
15,066 38,795 8,741
7,828 — —
62,727 41,282 2,823
134,261 — —
25,641 8,755 -
88,022 — —
846 (4.519) 12.004
319,325 45,518 12,004
$ 334,391 84,313 $ 20,745




™

MENTAL HEALTH
AND EMPLOYMENT STUDENT LOAN HIGHWAY HIGHWAY
RETARDATION SERVICES EDUCATION COMMISSION SAFETY OPERATING
$ 15,739 664 $ 126,626 3 100 56,202 3 229,053
— 1,335 392 3,271 — —
— 17,766 2,233 49.277 — —
. — _ — 27,740
20,103 — 37,117 7,662 553 33,982
—_— _ 32,895 8,989 —_ -
553 12,875 89 2,323 318 1,699
1 -— 1,268 — 13,505 1.500
— 972 —_ — —_ 28,785
— 14,708 — -_— — —
— 24 — 5,074 3,200 —
$ 36,396 48,344 3 200,620 3 76,696 73,778 3 322,759
3 1,624 1,214 3 643 3 101 1,837 $ 77,070
8.830 2,658 37,195 9,931 5,226 16,780
71 4,540 753 3317 1,771 904
960 11,444 616 3,438 — 11,622
— —_ —_ 5113 —_ —
71,385 19,856 39,207 18,914 8,934 106,376
9,378 2,552 108,434 1,323 20,014 678,200
— — 31,376 - —_ _—
— 15,704 — 1 3,200 28,785
— — — 20,467 —
15,633 10,232 21,603 35,991 41,630 (430,602)
25,011 28,488 161,413 57,782 64,844 216,383
$ 36,396 48,344 $ 200,620 3 76,696 73,778 3 322,759
(continued)
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| STATE OF OHIO
! SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1988
(amounts expressed in thousands)
! {continued)
]
WILDLIFE AND
: OHIO TURNPIKE NATURAL WATERWAY
| COMMISSION RESOURCES SAFETY
| .
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer ... ........... ... ... ... . $ _— $ 166,663 $ 22,676
Cash with Custodian . ................. ... .. .. .. 517 637 44
Investments . ... ... ... . . ... . . .. . . . .. . . .. .. 2,407 — —_
Receivables:
TAXES . — — 480
Intergovernmental . . ... .. ... ... — 2,022 4,229
; i Loans, Net........ .. .. ... .. . . . . . —_ 1,239 —
; Other ... . 1,666 758 130
: Due from Other Funds. ....................... ... . —_ 492 126
Inventories. . ......... ... ... . ... ... .. . . . ... ... .. 2,948 —_ —_—
Advance Payments to Subrecipients . .. ....... ... ..... — — —
Restricted Assets:
Cash and investments. ... ...................... ... 14,802 — —_
Other Assets ............ ... ... ... ... ... .. .. 2,595 — —_—
TOTAL ASSETS............... ... . ... ... . $ 24,935 $ 171,811 $ 27,685
; LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
iy Liabilities:
A Accounts Payable . ................... ... ... ... $ 885 $ 2,790 $ 482
" Accrued Liabilities . . . ................... . . ... .. ... 1,210 2,852 762
DuetoOther Funds. ................... ... ... ... . 534 1,402 39
' S Deferred Revenues . ..................... ... . ... .. _ 173 —
f g Refund and Other Liabilities . ........... ... ... ... ... — 103 —
‘ ) Advance from Other Funds .. ............. ... ... .. — — —
‘ Total Ligbilities. . . ................. ... ... . .. . . 2,629 7,320 1,283
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
DebtService ......... ... . ... ... . . .. . .. ... ... — —_—
Encumbrances............ ... ... ... .. .. .. . . .. ... — 46,068
Long-Term Portion of Loans Receivable . ............... — 1,199
} Other ..o 19,963 —_
L Unreserved/Designated for:
| Other .. .. - —
i Unreserved'Undesignated (deficits). . ............ ... .. 2,343 117,224
Total Fund Balances ............... .. ..... .. . 22,306 164,491
J TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ... .. $ 24,935 $ 171,811 $
|
|
|
I
i
L




REVENUE

REGULATORY DISTRIBUTION OTHER TOTAL

g 24.675 g 48,437 32,474 3 922,693
4 — 5 7,909

_— —_ - 114,573

179 104,030 873 133.302

3,050 — 3,377 132,143

— — 52 184,102

740 206 140 22,997

27 67,597 295 86,111

— — —_ 32,705

— — 32 23,495

—_ —_— —_ 37,743

— - —_ 10,893

$ 28,675 $ 220,270 37.248 3 1,708,666
3 7,920 $ — 2,427 $ 115,443
1,451 137,803 825 235,072

235 151 745 15,198

334 1,430 3,045 55,657

_ 35.487 — 42,464

. — — 197 722
3,940 174,871 7,239 464.556

— —_ — 7,828

2,149 - 10,900 989,936

— — 52 166,888

— 50,156 32 152,237

— —— — 108.489
22,586 {4,757) 19,025 (181,268)

24,735 45,399 30,009 7,244,110

$ 28,675 $ 220.270 37,248 $ 1,708,666
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STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

76

COMMUNITY
AND ECONOMIC HUMAN
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES HEALTH
REVENUES:
Income Taxes ............ ... . $ —_ 3 — —
Sales Taxes . ... — — -
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes. . ...................... — —_— —_
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes. . ..............c.cc'uuuuniii. .. —_— —_ —
[, Other Taxes. ........ ... .. ... ... — — -
Licenses, Permits and Fees. . .. ........ ... .. —_— 5,104 7,44;
Sales, Services and Charges. .. ................c..c..... 3,864 —_ 2,041
Federal Government .. ........ ... ... .. . . 0. ' 164,725 309,553 116,37¢
Other . ..o 29,017 4,892 10,472
TOTAL REVENUES . ... ... . i, 197,606 319,549 136,335
o EXPENDITURES:
o CURRENT:
- Primary, Secondary and Other Fducation . ................. — — —_
Higher Education. ... ........ ... .. .. ... i . — —_ —
Public Assistance and Medicaid ......................... — 166,639 —
Health and Human Services. ... ...........cccuovoo. .. — 130,235 138,842
Jdustice and Public Protection ............... ... ... 125 4,605 -
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources .. .......... — — -
Transportation . ........ ... ... . . ., — — -
General Government . . .............c. ...\, —_ — -
Community and Economic Development. . ................. 210,852 — -
Local Government Support, Tax Relief and Other ... ......... — —_ -
CAPITALOUTLAY . .. ..o i e, — 316
TOTALEXPENDITURES. ... ... ..., 210,977 301,795
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES . . ... . i, (13,371) 17,754
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds .. ........... 10,000 _—
Operating Transfers-in. . .....................c......... 1,600 —
Operating Transfers-out. .. .............. ..., (2,474) —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)................. 9,126 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES. . ... ... . . . . i (4,245) 17,754
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. . .. . i i, 323,570 27,764
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 ............. ... ..... ... .. $ 319,325 3 45,518




i co D ~

MENTAL HEALTH

AND EMPLOYMENT STUDENT LOAN HIGHWAY HIGHWAY
RETARDATION SERVICES EDUCATION COMMISSION SAFETY OPERATING
s — $ — $ — $ — — $ —
— — — —_— —_ 250,448
— — —_ —_ _— 16,258
7 — — — 64,039 4,344
— — 438 3,608 301 1,493
159,365 287,272 419,021 10,040 4,951 433,032
36,915 59,142 5,641 4,703 10,602 76,801
196,281 346,414 425,000 18,351 79,893 782,376
-— — 622,471 — —_ —
. J— 3,823 11,987 — —
203,115 325,068 151 —_ 3,600 —_
e — — —_ 143,723 —
—_ —_ - — —_— 1,027,953
—— 1,296 — 349 273 —
203,115 326,364 626,445 12,336 147,596 1.027,953
(6,834) 20,050 (201,445) 6.015 (67,703) (245,577)
— — 305,304 — 89,806 294,555
—_— — (102) — (1) (93,537)
— — 305,202 — 89,805 201,018
(6,834) 20,050 103,757 6,015 22,102 (44,559)
31,845 8,438 57,656 51,767 42,742 260,942
3 25,011 3 28,488 3 161,413 $ 57,782 64,844 216,383
(continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUES:

IncomeTaxes .....................
SalesTaxes .......................

Sales, Services and Charges. .........
Federal Government ................
Other..........cuviiviuiiiviiin.

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education

Higher Education. ..................

dJustice and Public Protection . . . ... ...

..................

..................

..................

..................

..................

Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . ........

Transportation .. ...................

Community and Economic Development .

..................

Local Government Support, Tax Reliefand Other .. ..........

CAPITALOUTLAY . . ...............u....

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES ....................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

BondProceeds ....................

..................

..................

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES. . . ................

WILDLIFE AND
OHIO TURNPIKE NATURAL WATERWAY
COMMISSION RESOQURCES SAFETY
- 10,941 -
- .- 3,987
— 9,344 ey
83,104 13,057 18,432
— 2,492 24
= 40,571 6,654
1,934 17,518 3,241
85,038 93,923 32,338
_ 73,153 27,721
40,548 — —
s 1,169 .
i 16,963 L8
— — 1,729
40,548 91,285 29,450
44,490 2,638 2,888
(43,064) (1,585) —
(43,064) (1,585) —
1,426 1,053 2,888
20,880 163,438 23,514
22,306 164,491 26,402




REVENUE

AEGULATORY DISTRIBUTION OTHER TOTAL

| REGULATORT

S — 346,965 2472 8 349,437

— 128,117 9,149 137,266

— 66.510 542 77.993

— 508,832 4 763.271

12,867 12,042 613 51,149

38,847 251,380 1,901 487,654

g: — 6.801 21,152

6.55C - 17,477 1,975,569

10,42 1,685 15.591 288,457

68.763 1,315,531 54,550 4,151,948

— — — 622,471

- — 1 15,811

—_ — 166.639

_ _— — 801,011

e — 26,969 175,756

- — — 100,874

- — 3,732 1,072,233

53,07 — 8,435 62,683

6.20¢ — 11,791 245.815

1,009,844 — 1,009,844

- — — 3,963

59,627 1,009,844 50,928 4,277.100

9.14! 305,687 3,622 (125,152)

— _— 10,000

e 18 — 696,344

i (298,145) (126) (448,805)

(7.5:7) (298,127) (126) 257,539

1,504 7.560 3,496 132,387

_ 2 37,839 26,513 1,111,723

P 2 45,399 30.009 $ 1,244,110
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STATE OF OHIO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

{amounts expressed in thousands)

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

VARIANCE
FAVORABLY
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORAB,
REVENUES:
Income Taxes................. .. .. ... ... ... . . $ — $ — $ -
Sales Taxes .............o. — — -
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes .. ................... — —_— -
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . ........................ . . — — -
Other Taxes ... — —_ -
Licenses, Permitsand Fees .. .................... ..., 10,971 10,971 -
Sales, Services and Charges . ........................ — —_ -
Federal Government. . ................... ... ... .. . 158,291 158,291 -
Other . ... .. 18,804 18,804 -
TOTALREVENUES. ... ...........0 i 188,066 188,066 -
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education. ... ............ _ —_— —_—
Higher Education ... ................ . ... ... ... ... — —_ —
Public Assistance and Medicaid. . ..................... — —_ -
Health and Human Services ... ................. ... ... — _— ~—
dustice and Public Protection......................... 731 531 2(
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources. . . . . . .. .. 112 110
Transportation . .......... ... ... i — — —
General Government ................. ... .. ... ... . 820 400 4z
Community and Economic Development . ............... 255,054 210,184 44,87
Local Government Support, Tax Relief and Other . . ... .. .. — —_ —
CAPITALOUTLAY ... ... . i —_ - -
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. ... ... ... . ... 256,717 211,225 45,49
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . . ... .......... .. (68,651) (23,159) 45,49
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in............. ... ... ... .. .. .. 137 137 -
Operating Transfers-out.......................... . (156) (156) -
Encumbrance Reversions. . ..................... ... .. 25,995 25,995 it
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .............. 25,976 25,976 el
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES .
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . . .. ................... ... .. 3 (42,675) 2,817 %ﬁgj
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES o
OEFICITS), JULY T ... ..., 25,098

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE30 .. ................... ... .. .. $ 27,915




HUMAN SERVICES

HEALTH

e —— VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
‘BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
— $ — — — — $ -
5,094 5,094 — 9,468 9,468 —
— —_ —_ 2,041 2,041 —
328,687 328,687 — 112,008 112,008 —
9,102 9.102 —_ 13,945 13,945 _
342,883 342,883 — 137,462 137,462 —
228,166 163,736 64,430 — — —
144,794 132,593 12,201 145,323 134,327 10,996
4,930 4,669 261 — _— —
— — _ 829 267 562
1,089 385 704 — — —
378.979 301,383 77,596 146.152 134,594 11,558
(36.096) 41,500 77,596 (8.690) 2,868 11,558
3,719 3,719 — 450 450 —
(3,719) (3,719) — (970) (870) —
8,450 8,450 — 3,271 3,271 —
8,450 8,450 — 2,751 2,751 —
$ (27,646) 49,950 77,596 (5.939) 5619 § 11.558
(32,474) 3,006
$ 17,476 8,625

(continued;



STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

{amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

MENTAL HEALTH AND RETARDATION

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes. ....... ... .. i, $ —_ 3 _ $ _—
Sales Taxes . . ... — —_— —_—
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . ... ................. — —_ —
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes ... ......................... —_ —_ —_
Other Taxes . ..., —_ — —
Licenses, Permitsand Fees . ... ...................... 1 1 —
Sales, Servicesand Charges . ........................ — — —
Federal Government. .. ................ i . 172,067 172,067 —
Other . ..o 35,072 35,072 —

TOTALREVENUES. .. ... ... ... ..., 207,140 207,140 —

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education. . .. ............ — —_ —
Higher Education . ... ........ ... ... ... .. ... ... ... — — —
Public Assistance and Medicaid. . ..................... —_— — —
Health and Human Services . .. ....................... 233,465 213,774 79,6917

Community and Economic Development . .. ............. — — —
Local Government Support, Tax Relief and Other ... ... ... —_ _ —
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . o e e — — —

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . ... ............... 233,465 213,774 19,691

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . ... ............. (26,325) (6.634) 19,691

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in. . ............................ — — —

Encumbrance Reversions. .. ..... ... .. .. ... ... .. ... 4,858 4,858 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES} . ... .......... 4,858 4,858 -

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . . .. .......... 3 (21,467) (1,776) $ 19,691
——————mem—— e

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 .. ... ... R R 3,783

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . . ... ........................ 3 1,407



EMPLOYMENT SERVICES EDUCATION
e e VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
s - — — 3 — 3 - $ —
3 3 — —_ — —_
iz 12 — 464 464 —
246.6°0 246,659 —_ 422,614 422,614 —
4019 4,019 — 23,616 23,616 —
250.693 250.693 — 446,694 446,694 —
_ —_ 690,967 675,031 15,936
— — 4,579 4,091 488
260,115 251,203 9,692 1,087 804 283
— _ 8,780 6,832 1,948
26¢.395 251,203 9,692 705,413 686,758 18,655
(10 202) (510) 9,692 (258,719) (240,064) 18,655
344 —_ 307,700 307.700 —
(345) — (102) (102) —_
1,349 — 6.960 6,960 —
1348 1,348 _ 314,558 314,558 —
838 9.692 § 55,839 74,494 3 18,655
(2,727) (64,840)
(1,889) $ 9,654
[contnued)
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STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

(continued)
STUDENT LOAN COMMISSION
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
IncomeRTaxest POST MR WSS, SRS L S T 3 — 3 —_ $ —
SBUBSITAXOSEL ... 1+ s el ol e s e oo e s — — —_
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . .................... — — —
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . ......................... .. _ — —
OtheriTaxesEewym ;. (ilape =% o DRI (oS 000 — —_ —
Licenses, Permits and Fees BNORO B i 08 B o6t oot ot IPL . ol 7,900 7,900 —
Sales, Services and Charges . ........................ —_ —
Federal Government.............................. .. —_ — —
Otherf = SRIery E PSR e N a3 e 4 4 _
TOTALREVENUES. ...............c00iiuuiinnn . 7,904 7,904 =
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education. . .. . ........... — —_ —
Higher Education .. ......................... ... ... 10,247 8,939 1,308
Public Assistance and Medicaid. ...................... —_ — —_
Health and Human Services .......................... —_ —_ _
Justice and Public Protection. ....................... . — — —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources. ......... — — _
Transportation .................................... — — -
General Government ............................ ... = — —
Community and Economic Development ................ — _ —
Local Government Support, Tax Relief and Other . . . .. . ... —_ —_ —_
CAPITALOUTLAY . ..........coiiiiiiiinnnnnnn — -_ —_—
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. .. .................. 10,247 8,939 1,308
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . ................ (2,343) (1,035) 1,308
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in............................ .. —_ — —
Operating Transfers-out. ............................ — —_ —
Encumbrance Reversions. ................. .. ... .. .. 78 78 —_
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .............. 78 78 —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHERFINANCING USES . .. .................... ... . $ (2,265) (957) 3 1,308
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
DEFICITS), JULY T .. .o (370)

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . ................0 0. 3 (1,327)



HIGHWAY SAFETY HIGHWAY OPERATING
am— VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
s - 8 — — — — 3 —
— — — 255,770 255,770 —
— — — 16,258 16,258 —
65,633 65,633 — 4,336 4,336 —_
307 301 — 1,493 1,493 —
5,166 5,166 —_ 411,851 411,851 —
13,986 13,986 — 76,180 76,180 —
85,086 85,086 — 765,888 765,888 —
4,382 4,322 60 —_ _ _
166,422 153,119 13.303 — _ —_
— — — 1,162,957 1,042,535 120,422
250 — 250 —_ — _
1,897 1,190 707 — — —
172,951 158,631 14,320 1,162,957 1,042,535 120,422
(87,865) (73,545) 14,320 (397,069) (276,647) 120,422
89,806 89,806 — 292,680 292,680 —
(1) (1) — (89,814) (89,814) —
2,524 2,524 — 34,984 34,984 —
92,329 92,329 — 237,850 237,850 —
$ 4,464 18,784 14,320 (159,219) (38,797) 3 120,422
—————
14,065 (486,366)
(525,163)

$ 32,849

(contbnued)




STATE OF OHIO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988
(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)
NATURAL RESOURCES
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
Income Taxes.................. ... ..... ... . ... 3 _ $ —_ 3 —_
SalesTaxes ............... ... . ... . ... .. —_ —_ s
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes ... ................ .. 10,941 10,941 —
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes .. ........................ .. — — —
OtherTaxes ................................. . .. 9,344 9,344 —
Licenses, Permits and Fees ... ..................... .. 12,830 12,830 _
Sales, Services and Charges ... ............... ... ... 2,532 2,532 =
Federal Government. . .................... ... .. .. .. 41,800 41,800 —
Other ... .. . . 21,071 21,071 —
I TOTALREVENUES. ................... ... . 98,518 98,518 -
E ' g BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
1 CURRENT:
] *’g Primary, Secondary and Other Education. . . ............. —_ —_ —_
' Higher Education . .......... ... ... .. .. ... .. .. ... .. — —_ —
! Public Assistance and Medicaid. . ........... .. ... ... . — — —
| Health and Human Services . ................ .. . .. .. .. == e —
| Justice and Public Protection. ................ ... . .. . — — -
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources. . . . . . . ... 92,738 77,978 14,760
: Transportation ......................... .. .. ... .. . —_ — —
{ General Government .. ....................... ... ... 2,052 1,323 729
Community and Economic Development . .. .. ....... .. .. 40,668 37,108 3,560
& Local Government Support, Tax Relief and Other . . .. . . ... — — — 3
i s CAPITALOUTLAY . ... ... . — — — i
I TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . . ............. . ..., 135,458 116,409 19,049
|
! EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES )
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . . . ........... ... {36,940) (17,891) 19,049
| OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
: Operating Transfers-in . ................ .. ... ... .. . 609 609 =
I8 Operating Transfers-out.................. ... ... . . (1.188) (1,168) =
il Encumbrance Reversions. . .................. ... .. .. 1,635 1,635 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .............. 1,056 1,056 =
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES 9,049
AND OTHER FINANCING USES. . . ........... ... .. ... .. .. .. $ (35,884) (16,835) $ 19, 2
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
OEFICITS), JULY 1 . ... 135,121 5
S a3
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES )
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 .. ......................... ... $ 118,286




WILDLIFE AND WATERWAY SAFETY REGULATORY

i VARIANCE VARIANCE
. FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
s —_— $ — 3 — $ — $ — $ —_
3,988 3,988 — —_— . _
— — —_ 12,915 12,915 —
18,403 18,403 — 39,960 39,960 —_
24 24 — 90 90 —
3,870 3,870 — 5,951 5,951 _—
3.297 3,297 — 10,940 10,940 —_
R
29,582 29,582 —_ 69,856 69,856 —_—
. — 372 332 40
30,832 28,251 2,581 —_ —_— —
— — — 61,443 55,654 5,789
— —_ — 7,093 6,317 776
3,795 2,522 1,273 — — —_—
34,627 30,773 3,854 68,908 62,303 6.605
{5.045) (1,191) 3,854 948 7,553 6,605
— — — 2,114 2,114 —
(13) (13) — (9,835) (9,835) —_
121 121 — 258 258 —
108 108 — (7.463) (7,463) —
S (4937 (1.083) $ 3854 $ (6.515) 90 3 6,605
——— — g
19.303 21,957
$ 18,220 $ 22,047
* (continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUE DISTRIBUTION

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes. .............0 i $ — 3 — $ —_
SAleS Taxes .. .o — — —_
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . .. .................. — — —
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . .. .............c...'.o'i. .. 502,638 502,638 —
Other Taxes . . ... 11,960 11,960 -
Licenses, Permils and Fees . . ...............o. 0. ... 296,433 296,433 —
Sales, Servicesand Charges ... ...................... — — —
Federal Government. .. ................ ... 0. . .. ... _ o —_
Other ... ... 1,600 1,600 —_

TOTALREVENUES. .. ............ 0.0, 812,631 812,631 —

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education. . .............. —_— e —
Higher Education . ............. ... .. .o ... —_ _— —

Community and Economic Development ... ............. —_ — —_—
Local Government Support, Tax Relief and Other . ... ... .. 1,043,531 1,043,212 319
CAPITAL OUTLAY .. ... . — -—_ —

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . .. ................. 1,043,631 1,043,212 319

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES o
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . ... ............. (230,900) (230,581} 319

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating Transfers-in. . ............................ 533,873 533,873

Operating Transters-out. .. .......................... (292,680) (292,680)

Encumbrance Reversions. ........................... — —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) . ............. 241,193 241,193

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . . . . ........................ $ 10,293 10,612

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 . . ... i 37.826

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . ............................. $ 48,438




OTHER TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
3 R Ya 1,657 — 3 1,657 3 1,657 $ —
<339 9.089 — 9,089 9,089 —_
542 542 —_ 11,483 11,483 —
4 4 — 762,400 762,400 —
513 613 — 51,090 51,090 —_
7.398 1,898 — 472,930 472,930 —_—
F.528 6,928 — 13,885 13,885 —
16,164 16,764 — 1,925,128 1,925,128 —
201,488 20,488 — 252,124 252,124 —_
57,383 57,383 — 3,499,786 3,499,786 —
— — — 690,967 675,031 15,936
2 ) 7 14,828 13,031 1,797
- — _— 228,166 163,736 64,430
- — —_ 789,946 737,023 52,923
027 29,742 5,285 216,262 195,225 21,037
— — _ 123,682 106,339 17,343
3.616 2,369 1,547 1,166,873 1,044,904 121,969
10.503 9,171 1,332 75,647 66,815 8,832
12,559 12,353 206 315,374 265,962 49,412
— — _ 1,043,781 1,043,212 569
- _— - 6.781 4,097 2,684
52,007 53.636 8,371 4.672,307 4,315,375 356,932
{4.624) 3,747 8,371 (1.172,521) (815,589) 356,932
— — — 1,231,432 1,231,432 —
(126) (126) — (398,949) (398,949) —
308 308 —— 90,791 90,791 ——
- 182 182 — 923,274 923,274 —_
L {4.442) 3,929 8,371 3 (249,247) 107,685 3 356,932
17,008 (310,210)
20,937 3 (202,525)

QO



[l DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Debt Service Funds accounts for the accumulation of resources for the payment of
general long-term debt principal and interest.

The Economic Development Bond Service Fund accounts for the payment of principal

and interest on bonds issued to finance loans to individuals, corporations, and agencies within the
State, which cannot obtain conventional financing for economic development projects that create

H 'f or retain jobs in the State.

The Qhi npik mmissi i accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on refunding revenue bonds issued in 1984 by the Ohio Turnpike Commis-
sion to refund the remaining portion of the original 1952 bonds issued to finance the construction
of the Ohio Turnpike.

The Coal Research/Development Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment
of principal and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 15, Article VIII of the
Ohio Constitution to provide financing for coal research and development projects.

The Improvements Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and

interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2f, Article VIII of the Ohio
Constitution to provide financing for the improvement of higher education facilities, public

schools, and natural resources and for other purposes.

The High Improvem Bon iremen accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2g, Article VIII of the
Ohio Constitution to provide financing for the acquisition of rights-of-way and for the construc-
tion and reconstruction of the State's highways and urban extensions.

The Development Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and

interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2h, Article VIII of the Ohio
. Constitution to provide financing for the construction, improvement, and development of higher
. education facilities, public schools, and natural resources and for other purposes. 3

. The Highw ligations Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of princi-
pal and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2i, Article VIII of the Ohio .-
1l Constitution to provide financing for construction of the State's highways.
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (Continued)
The Public Improvements Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of prin-

cipal and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2i, Article VIII of the Ohio
Constitution to provide financing for the improvement of higher education facilities, water
pollution controls, parks and natural resources, and other projects.

The Special Distribution Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of princi-

pal and interest on bonds issued to provide financing to the Depositor Assistance Corporation for
acquiring financial institutions, which were in financial difficulties as a result of the Home State
Savings and Loan bankruptcy in 1985, as a means to provide remuneration to depositors with

assets placed in such institutions.

The Vietnam Conflict Compensation Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the

payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2j, Article
VIII of the Ohio Constitution to provide compensation to Ohioans that served in the military
during the Vietnam Conflict.

The Qhio Public Facilities Commission Fund accounts for the payment of principal

and interest on bonds issued to finance the construction of mental health, higher education, parks
and recreation, and State park facilities.

The Qhig Building Authority Fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest on

bonds issued to finance the construction of State office buildings and rehabilitation and correc-
tional facilities.

The Bureau of Employment Services Fund accounts for the payment of interest on ad-

vances from the U.S. Treasury.

1
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STATE OF OHIO
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed mn thousands)

COAL RESEARCH,

ECONOMIC OHIO TURNPIKE DEVELOPMENT
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION BOND
BOND SERVICE BOND SERVICE RETIREMENT
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer ....... ... .. .. . . . 3 — — $ 5
Cash with Custodian . ......... ... . .. ~~ 80 36 —
Investments .............. . . . 202 169 —_—
Receivables:
Taxes ... _— _— —_—
Other ... —_ — —_—
Due from Other Funds. .. ... ... ... ... ."""""""" — —_ —
TOTALASSETS......................... $ 282 205 $ 5
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Refund and Other Liabilities ...... .. .. .. .. $ 80 34 3 —_
Total Ligbilities . . . ............... ... ... . 80 34 —_—
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
DebtService ......... .. ... .. . ... ... .. . .. 202 171 5
Other ... —_ -— —
Total Fund Balances ........... ... ... .. . . . 202 171 5
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ... .. 3 282 205 $ 5




HIGHWAY HIGHWAY usLIC SPECIAL
OVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS DEVELOPMENT OBUGATIONS IMPROVEMENTS DISTRIBUTION
MPROOND BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND
RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT
s 4253 3 11412 20 93,986 69 7,000
428 600 520 1,939 1,304 —
1,104 —_— — 24,940 — —
24 70 — 557 — —
17 49 — 391 — —
s 586 § 12,131 § 540 121,813 1,373 7,000
$ 228 8§ 350 $ 295 1,689 1,104 —
228 350 295 1,689 1,104 —
5,598 11,781 245 120,124 269 —
— — — — — 7,000
5,598 11,781 245 120,124 269 7,000
$ 5826 § 12,131 8 540 121,813 1,373 7,000

(continued)
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HEATE OF OHIO
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1988

{amounts expressed mn thousands)
(continued;

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer .. . ... ... ... ..
Cash with Custodian .. ........ .. .. . . .. .
Investments.................. ... .. . .

Receivables:

Taxes . ... ... .. . .
Other ...

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Refund and Other Liabilities . .......... . .
Total Liabilities. . ............. ... ... .

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

DebtService ...................... ..
Other ... .

VIETNAM

CONFLICT
COMPENSATION OHIO PUBLIC oD
BOND FACILITIES B NG
RETIREMENT COMMISSION AU? “IRITY
$ 147 — $ -
609 1,341 -
— 272,861 —
1 3,282 -~
1 — - 133,678
$ 758 277484  § 133618
$ 359 1147 8 —
359 1,747 —
399 276,337 133,618
399 276,337 133,678
$ 758 277484 3 133618




TOTAL

5 116,892
- 6.857
273,232

‘ 26,044
3,934

134,076
$ 561,035
e

548,749
7,000

555,749
s 561,035
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STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVEN UES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

COAL RESEAR(
ECONOMIC OHIO TURNPIKE DEVELOPMEN
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION BOND
BOND SERVICE BOND SERVICE RETIREMENT
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes. ...................... ... $ —_ $ - $ —
Other Taxes..................... ... . . .. ..==" —_— —_ =
Licenses, Permits and Fees. ....... ...... ... . ... " — — —
Federal Government .. ......... .. ... .. .. . . . " —_ e -3
Other ... .. . 207 12
TOTALREVENUES ........................... ... ... . 207 12
EXPENDITURES: ,
DEBTSERVICE. .......... .. ... ... .. 0. 0 il 18,092 409 6,70
TOTALEXPENDITURES. ..................... ... .. ... . 18,092 409 6,70
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES ........... . ... (17,885) (397) (6,70;!
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds ............... ... ... ... . . .. ... — — —
Refunding Bond Proceeds ............... .. ... .. " — -— _—
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents ................ — —_ s
Operating Transfers-in. ........... ... . . ... =" 17,934 397 6,701
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . ............. .. 17,934 397 6,701
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 1
FINANCING USES. . ......... ... .. ... ... . . ... . .. 49 = 1
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. .................. ... . ... .. 153 171 ‘
FUND BALANCES,JUNE30 ............... ... . $ 202 171 5




HIGHWAY HIGHWAY PUBLIC SPECIAL
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS IMPROVEMENTS DISTRIBUTION
BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND
RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT
s — 3 4,678 —_— $ 43,273 $ —_ $ —
13,618 1,964 — 47,848 — —
— 44 — 289 — _—
235 817 37 6,763 54 65,140
13.853 7,503 37 98,173 54 65,140
78,370 8,844 18,8981 98,409 18,699 73,130
18.310 8,844 18,981 98,409 18,699 73,130
(4.457) (1,341) (18,944) (236) (18,645) (7,990)
e — — 659 — —
4,588 — 18,944 -— 18,653 13,000
4,588 —_ 18,944 659 18,653 13,000
131 (1,341) —_ 423 8 5,010
5467 13,122 245 119,701 261 1,990
$ 5,598 $ 11,781 245 $ 120,124 3 269 3 7,000
(continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

{continued)
VIETNAM
CONFLICT
COMPENSATION OHIO PUBLIC OHIO
BOND FACILITIES BUILDING
RETIREMENT COMMISSION AUTHORITY
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes.................. ... . . $ — $ —_— —
Other Taxes................... . ...~ — » — —
Licenses, Permits and Fees. ...... . ... .. — — —_
Federal Government ... ... ... ...~ —_— 448 —
Other ... 52 15,726 —_—
TOTALREVENUES ................................ 52 16,174 —
EXPENDITURES:
DEBTSERVICE............ ... ... .. ... ... ... ... 22,346 253,671 43,407
TOTALEXPENDITURES. ............ .. .. .. .. .. .. . . 22,346 253,671 43,407
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES ............. .. (22,294) (237,497) {43,407
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds .......... ... _ — —
Refunding Bond Proceeds ........ . ... ... . .7 — 199,521 —_
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents ............. ... —_ (199,521) —_
Operating Transfers-in. ......... .. . .. " 22,358 258,272 79,810
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . ... ... ... ... 22,358 258,272 79,810
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES. . ......... .. ... .. .. . . ... . 64 20,775 36,403
FUND BALANCES, JULYT ............. ... ... .. ... .. e 335 255,562 97,215
FUND BALANCES,JUNE 30 .......... ... ... .. $ 399 g 276,337

133,618




OYMENT
a;’;c_newces TOTAL
— 47,951
— 63,430
— 333
— 448
— 89,052
= 201,214
48,608 629,615
48,608 629,615
(48,608) (428,401)
— 659
— 199,521
— (199,521)
48,608 489,265
% 48,608 489,924
— 61,523
—_ 494,226
s — 555,749




STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Fo COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
E IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (B UDGETARY BASIS)
' FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

COAL RESEARCH / DEVELOPMENT
BOND RETIREMENT

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
| BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
' REVENUES: i
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes ............ ... .. . . 3 —_ 3 —_ 3 -_
Other Taxes ................ . ... —_ —_— —
Licenses. Permits and Fees... ... . .. ... . 11 —_ — —
i Do 0 G D ot itk o o 6,711 6,711 —
é N TOTALREVENUES.............................. 6,711 6,711 .
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
i i DEBTSERVICE................................... 6,709 6,709 —
4 TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . ... ... .. . . . . .. . 6,709 6,709 -

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . ... .. .. .. ... .. . 2 2 —

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Bond Proceeds ............... ... . . ... - — —_

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . ... .. .. $ 2 2 $ —
e Qe R ———
f{ UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES,
1 LY T T 3
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGET, ARY FUND BALANCES,
JUNESO.......oooo T $ 5
—_—
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IMPROVEMENTS BOND RETIREMENT

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS BOND RE TIREMENT

P VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFA VORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFA VORABLE)
; . — 3 - 4678 3 4678 § —
13,470 13,472 - 1,964 1,964 —
- — - 44 44 —
4,825 4,825 — 863 863 -
18.297 18,297 — 7,549 7,549 —
18,310 18,310 — 8,844 8,844
18.370 18,310 — 8,844 8,844
(13) (13) - (1,295) (1.295) -
$ (13) (13) 8 — (1,295) (1,295) g —
4,266 12,706
4,253 $ 11,411

(continued)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
8

{continued)
DEVELOPMENT BOND RE TIREMENT
VARIANCE ™
FAVORABL £
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORAB )
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle FuelTaxes................ ... $ _ 3 - 3 —
pomer Taxes . . ... — — —
Licenses, Permits ang Fees............. ..l —_ —_— —
Omor - 18,988 18,988 —
\
TOTAL REVENUES. . 18,988 18,988 _—
\
BUDGETARY EX PENDITURES:
CEBTSERWCE .. ... TL 18,987 18,9871 —
— T
TOTAL BUDGE TARY EXPENDITURES. ... ... .. . 18,987 18,981 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES .................. 7 7 —_
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
fond Procseds ... —_ —_ —_—
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES...... ... ... ... . — —_— —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING )
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGE TARY EXPENDITURES . . .. $ 7 7 $ -_—
UNRESEHVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES,
AT T haees, 12
—_— %
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FunD BALANCES,
HUNESO. T BALANCES 3 19
%

{
|
{




HIGHWAY OBLIGATIONS BOND RETIREMENT

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS BOND RETIREMENT

VARJANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
3 44.287  § 44,287  § — — $ — $ —
46.558 46,558 —_ — — —
289 289 — _ —_ —
7.158 7,158 — 18,713 18,713 —
98.292 98,292 — 18,713 18,713 —
101,613 98,409 3,704 18,699 18,699 —
101,513 98,409 3,104 18,699 18,699 —
(3.221) (117) 3,104 14 14 -
660 660 — —_ — —_—
660 660 — — — —
$ (2.561) 543 3 3.104 14 14 3 —
93,444 56
$ 93,987 3 70
{continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

famounts expressed in thousands)

TOTALREVENUES. .............. ... ... .. .. ... . . 22,415 22,415 —

(continued)
VIETNAM CONFLICT COMPENSATION
BOND RETIREMENT
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
] BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
; REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . ............... .. .. .. . . 3 —_— 3 — $ —
Other Taxes .................. .. ... .. .. ... .. — —_ =
i Licenses, Permits and Fees................. .. ... _ —_— —
¥ | Other ............. ... ... ... ... ...~ 22,415 22,415 —
fis

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE . ................................... 22,346 22,346 —

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. .. ... ... ... ... .. . . 22,346 22,346 —

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . .. ............ .. 69 69 .

A OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: .
N Bond Proceeds ................ ... .. ... .. . . .. . . — == =

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING

: SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . ... ... .. $ 69 69 $ —
i e
: UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES,
JULY 1o 77
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES,
JUNE3O. ... $ 146
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TOTAL DEBT SERVICE

3 109,891

— VARIANCE

FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

s 48965 § 48965 $ —

61.994 61,994 —

333 333 -

79,673 79,673 —

190,965 190,965 —
195,402 192,298 3,104
195,302 192,298 3,104
(4,437) (1,333) 3,104

660 660 —

660 660 —
$ (3,777) (673) 3 3,104

110,564
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities and for major repairs and replacements other than those financed by proprietary
funds and trust funds.

The Qhi rnpik mmissi accounts for bond proceeds that finance capital
outlay and major repairs and replacements for the Ohio Turnpike.

The Hi ion Improvemen accounts for bond proceeds that finance
the construction of facilities for State-assisted higher education institutions.

The High ligation nstruction accounts for bond proceeds that finance
capital outlay and major repairs and replacements for the State's highways.

The Men I ntal Retardati ilities Improvements Fund accounts
for bond proceeds that finance the construction of mental health/mental retardation facilities.

The Public Improvements Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance the capital im-

provement of higher education facilities, water pollution controls, parks and natural resources,
and other projects.

The Parks and Recreation Improvements Fun accounts for bond proceeds that fi-
nance the capital improvement of park and recreation facilities.

The Ohio Building Authority Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance the construc-

tion of State office buildings and rehabilitation and correctional facilities.

i lald
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STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands) ™

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer ........... .. ... ... . . .
Cash with Custodian .. ............. ... .. ... . . "
Investments ............ ... ... .. .. .. .. ... ..
Receivables:

Other ... .

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable . .................. ... .. .. ...
Accrued Liabilities . .. ........ ... ... .. ... .. . . .

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances. .......... ... ... ... . ... . . ... . ..
Other ........... ... ... .. .. .. ...

HIGHER HIGHWAY
OHIO TURNPIKE EDUCATION OBLIGATIONS
COMMISSION IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION
— $ 58,983 $ 104,246
4,781 — —
22,268 —_ —
302 397 366
— 279 257
27,351 $ 59,659 $ 104,869
$ — $ — $ —
6 15,159 6,039
— — 1
4,429 — —
4,435 15,159 6,040
— 126,360 78,083
22,916 —_ —
— (81,860) 20,746
22,916 44,500 96,829
27,351 $ 59,659 $ 104,869




MENTAL HEALTH/

L ereoaTioN PARKS AND OHIO
! FACIUITIES PUBLIC RECREATION BUILDING
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY TOTAL
L
s 16,467 $ 385 $ 4,865 — $ 184,946
— —_ — —_ 4,781
— — e — 22,268
223 —_ — — 1,288
157 — — 6,495 7,188
$ 16,847 $ 385 $ 4,865 6,495 3 220,471
$ 3,017 $ — $ — — $ 3,017
— — —_ —_ 21,204
— _— —_ — 7
— — — — 4,429
3.017 — —— — 28,651
41,404 209 4,205 —— 250,261
— — - 6,495 29,411
(27,574} 176 660 — (87,852)
13,830 385 4,865 6,495 191,820
$ 16,847 $ 385 $ 4,865 6,495 3 220,471
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STATE OF OHIO
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

|
| COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
II CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

|

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

{amounts expressed in thousands)

HIGHER HIGHWAY
OHIO TURNPIKE EDUCATION OBLIGATIONS
COMMISSION IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION
%
! REVENUES:
! Other .o $ 1,929 8 5949 8 1,988
| TOTALREVENUES ....................... ... . ... " 1,929 5,949 1,988
f
| EXPENDITURES:
P CURRENT:
‘: . Transportation ... 37,228 — —_
CAPITALOUTLAY ... ..... .. . | e 18,749 168,986 78,226
é TOTALEXPENDITURES. .. .............. . ... ... . . 55,977 168,986 78,226
& l DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES ........ .. . . . .. {(54,048) (163,037) (76,238)
;1 | OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
i Bond Proceeds ... 0T — 118,200 170,001
Operating Transfers-in. . ... .. . """ 44,682 10,000 —
Operating Transfers-out. . .. ... . ... ...~~~ -— (710,000) —
’ TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). ............. . .. 44,682 118,200 170,001
,I EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES. . ... .. . . . . ... (9,366) (44,837) 93,763
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1................ ... ... .. ... .. 32,282 89,337 5,066
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 ... $ 22,916 ¢ 44,500 3 98,829

110




MENTAL HEALTH/

MENTAL
RETARDA TION PARKS AND OHIO
FACILITIES PUBLIC RECREATION BUILDING
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY TOTAL
$ 3,682 § — $ —_ $ — 13,548
3,682 — — —_ 13,548
— — —_ — 37,228
24,190 916 5218 224,683 520,968
24,190 916 5,218 224,683 558,196
(20,508) (916) (5,218) (224,683) (544,648)
23,971 — — 120,711 432,883
_ - _ 110,467 165,149
_ - - — (10,000)
23,971 — — 231,178 588,032
3,463 (916) (5,218) 6,495 43,384
10,367 1,301 10,083 — 148,436
$ 13,830 § 385 3 4865 § 6.495 191,820




STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT oF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES . BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

{@amounts expressed in thousands)

HIGHER EDUCATION IMPROVEMENTS

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
0 REVENUES:
OMer oo $ 5531 ¢ 5531 3 =
TOTAL RE VENUES..ooo 5,531 5,531 —
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CAPIMOUILAY .o 482,292 178,799 303,493
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. ... .. . . . . . . . 482,292 178,799 303,493
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. . ... . . . (476,76 1) (173, 268) 303,493
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
el DR R e 118,200 118,200 —_
Operating Jranstors-in. ... .00l 17,320 17,320 —
Operating rransfers-out. ..., [l (17.320) (17,320) —_
Encumbrance Reversions. ... .. .01l 2,004 2,004 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ... ... .. . .. .. 120,204 120,204 _ i
-
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING :
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES. .o 3 (356,55 7) (53,064) $ 303,493
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
B PR St (29,420)
—_— ey
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE £ U8 Roo B o o A 3 (82,484)
%
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T s s o s s - s i

MENTAL HEALTH / MENTAL RE TARDATION

HIGHWAY OBLIGATIONS CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES IMPROVEMENTS
—— VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAYORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
5 2,027 3 2.027 3 — 3 3,302 3 3,302 $ —
2,027 2,027 — 3,302 3,302 —
107,321 49,624 57,697 105,234 39,013 66,221
107,321 49,624 57,697 105,234 39,013 66,221
(105,294) (47,597) 57,697 (101,932) (35,711) 66,221
170.001 170,001 — 23,971 23,971 —_
— —_ — 13,541 13,5471 —
— — —_ (13,541) (13,541) —_—
30,150 30,750 — 759 759 —
200,151 200,151 — 24,730 24,730 —
$ 94,857 152,554 $ 57,697 $ (77,202) (10,981) 8 66,221
s —_——commeee
(16,838)

(132,357)

$ 20,197 $ (27,819)
e ———— — 5



STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

(continued)
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES: -
Other ..o $ — $ —_ ) —
TOTALREVENUES. ...................... . .. ... . _ — —_
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CAPITALOUTLAY .......... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 175 1 174
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES. ............ ... .. .. 175 1 174
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPEND/ TURES ........................ ... (175) (1) 174
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BondProceeds ............... . ... . .. ... . —_ —_ —_
Operating Transfers-in. ........ ... . .. .~ —_ —_ —_
Operating Transfers-out........ .. .. ... . .. " — —_ —_
Encumbrance Reversions. . ....... . .. ... .17 5 5 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ............. . 5 5 —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . ......... ... ... . . .. . . $ (170) 4 3 174
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
OEFICITS), JULY 1 ... 173

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . ........... ... .. ...~ $ 177




PARKS AND RECREATION IMPROVEMENTS

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS

— VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAYORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
s — — — 10,860 10,860 —
— — — 10,860 10,860 —
12,818 8,320 4,498 707,840 275,757 432,083
12,818 8,320 4,498 707,840 275,757 432,083
(12,818) (8,320) 4,498 (696,980) (264,897) 432,083
— — _ 312,172 312,172 —
— - — 30,861 30,861 —
— — — (30,861) (30,867) —
43 43 — 32,961 32,961 —
43 43 — 345,133 345,133 —
$ (12,775) (8,277) 4,498 (351,847) 80,236 432,083
8,937 (169,505)
$ 660 (89,269)

l
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises -- where the State's intent is that the cost of provid-
ing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges; or where the State has decided that periodic determina-
tion of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

The i mmission Fund accounts for the operations of the State Parking
Commission.

The Liquor Control Fund accounts for the operations of the Department of Liquor Control.

The Ohio Lottery Commission Fund accounts for the operations of the State Lottery.

The rs' Compensation Fund accounts for the operations of the Bureau of Workers'

Compensation.



STATE OF OHIO

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer ... .... ... ... ... . . . .
Cash with Custodian ... ...... . .. . ../
Investments ... ... ... . . . ..l
Receivables:
Premiums and Assessments ....... ... ... .. .. . . . .
Other . .......... .. ... .. ... ...

Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer ........... ... .. .. . . . .
Dedicated investments . ...... . .. . ... [/
Other...... ... ... ..l

Noncurrent Assets:
Investments . ........ ... .. ... . ... . .. ... . .. ..

Fixed Assets:
FixedAssets ............................ ...

Less Accumulated Depreciation ...... .. .. ... ... ... .
Total Fixed Assets . ......................... .

TOTALASSETS. ..........................

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable .. .......... .. ... .. ... . . .
Accrued Liabilities . . . ... ... .. . .

Long-Term Liabilities:
Workers' Compensation Benefits Payable............ . .
Revenue Bonds Payable . ...... .. .. . ... . "7

Fund Equity:
Net Unrealized Gains on Investments .. ....... ... .. . .
Retained Earnings:
Reserved....................... . ... . .. ..

STATE OHIO
PARKING UQUOR LOTTERY
COMMISSION CONTROL COMMISSION
— s 1227 8 13,077
164 3,602 2,194
4,237 _ 12,696
82 — 36,198
- 5 1.746
- 22,058 _
— 431 523
4,483 27,323 66,434
— — 386,957
_ — 174,362
— — 4,482
— — 565,807
7,289 10,499 29,858
(3.668) (6,405) (13,008)
3,627 4,094 16,760
8104 g 31417 g 650,995
19 8 10594 & 5,369
106 1,574 887
— 119 2,131
— 10 1.380
51 2,921 32,826
776 15,218 42,587
- —_ 161
— — 536,007
— - 536,168
1,374 _ —
7,374 — —
1,550 15,218 578,755
— — 11,6719
6,554 16,199 60,621
6,554 16,199 72.240
8104 g 31,417 3 650,995




WORKERS’

COMPENSATION TOTAL
3 9,186 $ 23,490
10,755 16,715
533,149 550,082
1,162,502 1,162,502
51,835 90,115
— 1,751
—_ 22,058
85,793 86,747
1,853,220 1,953,460
— 386,957
— 174,362
— 4,482
— 565,801
4,881,288 4,881,288
4,881,288 4,881,288
20,142 67,788
(10,797) (33,968)
9,345 33,820
$ 6,743,853 $ 7,434,369
$ 3,380 3 19,362
6,637 9,798
— 2,250
21,368 22,758
373,600 409,398
404,985 462,966
— 167
— 536,007
— 536.168
8,610,148 8,610,148
—_ 1,374
8,610,148 8,611,522
9,015,133 9,610,656
553,678 553,678
122,157 133,776
(2,947,115) (2.863,741)
(2,271,280) (2,176,287)
$ 6743853 $ 7434369




STATE OF OHIO

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

OPERATING RE VENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services ........... ... ... . ... . .
Premium and Assessment Income ....... . .. . . . .. "
Investment Income. . ... ...
Oher. ...

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services .............. ... . ...
Administration ...
Prizes and Claims ... .. ... ...~
Benefit Payments and Refunds ..................... ..
Depreciation ... ... ... i
Other ...

NONOPERATING RE VENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income. ... T
Interest Expense .............. .
Other . ...

OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-out. .................. .. .. .

STATE OHIO
PARKING LIQUOR LOTTERY
COMMISSION CONTROL COMMISSION
872§ 349,759 1,375,752
— — 32,367
— 617 2,943
1,872 350,376 1,471,056
700 220,504 -
186 59,711 140,870
- — 662,805
186 933 5,552
~ — 35,960
1,074 281,148 865,187
798 69,228 545,869
229 — —
(67) — (79
3 (165) -
171 (165) (279)
969 69,063 545,590
— (67,935) (506,973)
969 1,128 38,617 .
5,585 15,071 33,623
6554 3 16,199




WORKERS’

COMPENSATION TOTAL

$ - 3 1,727,383
1,192,491 1,192,491

— 32,361

1,068 4,628
7,193,559 2,956,863

— 221,204

7,194 207,963

— 682,805

1,692,145 1,692,145
2,953 9,624

166,318 202,278
1,768,610 2,916,079
(575,051) 40,844
557,490 557,719
(1,786) (2,126)

800 638

556,504 556,231
(18,547) 597,075

— (574,908)

(18,547) 22,167
(2,806,411) (2,752,132)

$ (2824958 s (2 729,965)

Tt




STATE OF OHIO

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

122

STATE OHIO
PARKING LIQUOR LOTTERY
; COMMISSION CONTROL COMMISSION
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Netincome (Loss)............... ... ... ... . .. . . . 969 $ 1,128 $ 38,617
Add (Deduct) Items Not Affecting Cash:
Increase in Other Receivables ... ........ . ... ... . . 21) — (29,232)
Increase in Due from Other Funds. .. ... ... ... " —_ (3) (1.746)
Decrease in inventory. . ........ .. ... . .. 7 —_ 2,373 —
Decrease (Increase) in Other Current Assels............. — 3 (52)
increase in Premiums and Assessments Receivable . . . . . .. —_ —_ —_
Decrease in Other Restricted Assets. . ... ..... ... .. . — — 3,000
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable ......... .. ..., 1 727 (185)
Increase in Workers' Compensation Benefits Payable . .. ... —_ —_ —
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities . ... ......... .. — (2,781) . 180
Decrease in Due to Other Funas .. .. ... .. . ... """ —_ (511) (1,764)
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenues . . . .. ....... .. — 8 821)
Increase (Decrease) in Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . ... 22 (76) (5.550)
Increase in Deferred Prize Awards Payable........... ... —_ — 166,257
Depreciation. ......... ... 0. . . .. 186 933 5,552
Provision for Uncollectible Accounts .............. ... . . —_— — —_
Amortization of Bond Premium. .. ... ... .. ... . . . . — — —
Other, Net.................. ... . ... .0 25 — —
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets.......... .. .. ... " — 136 —_
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES . . . 1,182 1,937 174,256
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Current Investments . e (1,081) — (3,622)
Purchase of Noncurrent Investments . ... ..., .. . .. —_ — —
Purchase of Fixed Assets. ........ ... .. ...~ 27) (2,729) (3,261)
Purchase of Restricted Investments. . ... ... ... . —_— — (97,717)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES . . . ... . (1,108) (2,729) (104,600)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
/ssuance of Revenue Bonds. ............ ... ... . 4 —_ —
Reduction of Other Payables . .......... .. . ... " — = (59)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) ;
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ...... .. ... .. . . . 4 - (59)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS................. . 78 (792) 69,597
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JuLY 1..... . ... . .. 86 5,621 332,631
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 ..... .. .. 164 $ 4,829 $ 402,228




WORKERS'

COMPENSATION TOTAL

$ (18,547)  § 22,167
(18,264) (47,517)
— (1,749)

— 2,373
1,791 1,742
(162,753) (162,753)
— 3,000
(8.597) (8,054)
485,639 485,639
(1,667) (4,262)
— (2,275)
21,328 20,515
38,961 33,357
— 166,257
2,953 9,624
20,635 20,635
4,797 4,797
1,478 1,503

— 136

367,760 545,135
(63,418) (68,121)
(299,264) (299,264)
(4,507) (10,524)
—_ (97.717)
(367,189) (475,626)

— 4

— (59)

— (55)

571 69,454

19,370 357,708

19,941

427,162

1N
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by a
State department or agency to other agencies and to other government units, on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

The Qhi ilding Authority Fund accounts for the revenues and oﬁerating expenses of
State office buildings and other government buildings owned by the Ohio Buildin g Authority.

The Ohio Data Network F und accounts for the revenues and expenses associated with

electronic data processing goods and services provided to user State agencies and to local gov-
ernment units.

The i nal In ri nd accounts for revenues and expenses associated with the
purchase of raw materials and labor costs that are incurred in the production of manufactured
goods and agricultural commodities sold to user State agencies.

The Support Services Fund accounts for revenues and expenses associated with the pur-
chase of food, medical, and other institutional supplies and the costs of services provided to user
State agencies.

The Telecommunications F und accounts for the revenues and expenses related to tele-

communications services provided to State agencies and to local government.

12K



STATE OF OHIO

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

OHIO OHIO OHIO
BUILDING DATA PENAL
AUTHORITY NETWORK INDUSTRIES
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . .. ................... ... $ — 3 13,476 3 7.767
Cash with Custodian . .................. . .. ... 1,480 —_— 6
Investments............................. .. ... . . 2,269 - —_
Receivables:
Intergovernmental. . .......... ... .. ... ... . .. .. ... . —_ 403 306
Other ... ... 4,409 —_— 360
Due from Other Funds. ................... ... .. ... —_ 16,452 6,077
Advanceto Other Funds ................... .. ... . —_— 1,802 _
Inventories. . ........... ... ... ... ... . . .. . ... ... .. — 242 6,539
Other Assets ......................c. 0. 22 324 —_
Total Current Assets ........................ ... 8,180 32,699 21,055
Restricted Assets:
Cashand Investments.................. ... ... ... .. 351,820 48,836 —_—
Other. ... ... . . . . — 12,196 —
Total Restricted ASSets . ....................... .. 351,820 617,032 —_
Noncurrent Assets:
Other Assets ................. ... . 59,466 _ —_—
Total Noncurrent Assets ......................... 59,466 — —
Fixed Assets:
Fixed Assets ................. ... .. ... ... .. . ... —_ —_ —
Less Accumulated Depreciation .. ................. .. — _— —_—
Total Fixed Assets . ........................... .. — —_ —
TOTALASSETS. ................... ... ... .. $ 419,466 3 93,731 3 21,055
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable ........................ ... ... .. $ — $ 5,781 3 2,507
Accrued Liabilities . . . .................... ... ... 28,727 1,238 1,408
DuetoOther Funds.......................... .. .. 740,113 255 792
Deferred Revenues .. ............................ . 8,000 — 3,710
Refund and Other Liabilities .. .................. .. .. 3,299 3,007 —
Total Gurrent Liabilities . ................ ...... . . 180,139 10,281 8,417
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Lease Obligations and Other. . ................. ... .. — 66,337 —
Total Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets . . . .. .. —_ 66,337 —
Long-Term Liabilities:
Advance From Other Funds. .. ................... ... - — —
Long-Term Accrued Liabilities. .. ................ . ... —_ — —
Revenue Bonds Payable . ................... ... ... 54,393 — —
Total Long-Term Liabilities. ... ................ ... . 54,393 — —
Total Liabilities. . .. .................. ... ..... .. 234,532 76,618 8,417
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital ... ............... ........ .. .. _ —_ —
Retained Earnings:
Reserved.................................... . 184,934 — —
Unreserved . ... .. ... .. ... .. . . . . . ... . ... ... —_ 17,113 12,638
Total Fund Equity . . ................... .. .. .. .. 184,934 17,113 12,638
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQuITY. ...... .. $ 419,466 $ 93,731 $ 21,055

1264



SUPPORT

TELE-
COMMUNICATIONS

SERVICES TOTAL

S 2,589 $ 1,852 $ 25,684
— — 1,486

— — 2,269

189 342 1,240

14 26 4,809

4,713 5,025 32,267

— — 1,802

5,779 — 12,560

— — 346

13,284 7,245 82,463

— 12,979 413,635

— 1,198 13,394

— 14,177 427,029

— —_ 59,466

— — 59,466

4,365 193 4,558
(1,949) —_ (1,949)

2,416 193 2,609

3 15,700 $ 21,615 $ 571,567
$ 1,598 $ 1,725 $ 11,671
557 533 32,463

41 697 141,898

653 — 12,363

— — 6,306

2,849 2,955 204,641

—_ 29,933 96,270

— 29,933 96,270

— 1,185 1,185

— 573 573

— — 54,393

— 1,758 56,151

2,849 34,646 357,062

338 — 338

369 — 185,303

12,144 (13,031) 28,864

12,851 (13.031) 214,505

$ 15,700 $ 21,615 $ 571,567
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STATE OF OHIO

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

OHIO OHIO OHIO
BUILDING DATA PENAL
AUTHORITY NETWORK INDUSTRIES
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services . ..................... . $ 24098 % 70,393 % 5,855
Other. ... ... 584 3,328 8,137
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES . .. ................ .. ... ... 24,682 73,721 13,992
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Costs of Sales and Services . .........................._. 10,971 36,059 11,259

Administration ............ ... ... .. ... . . . . . . 95171 19,888 11,768

Depreciation ............ ... ... . . . . . . .. . . . .. — — —_—

Other .. ... — 9,527 45

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . .. .............. ... ... .. 11,922 65,474 23,072
OPERATING INCOME . . . . ..... ... ... ... ... ... .. 12,760 8,247 {9.080)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Investment Income. . .............. ... .. . . . . . .. ... .. .. 8,049 3,800 —

Interest Expense .. ................ .. ... .. . . . ... . ... .. (5,299) (4,644) —

Other .. ... — (57) —

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) .. ............ 2,750 (901) —
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS . .. ... ..... .. ... 15,510 7,346 (9,080)
OPERATING TRANSFERS:

Operating Transfers-out. .. ........................... . (110,467) — —
NETINCOME (LOSS). . .. ... oo (94,957) 7,346 (9,080)
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS), JULY 1. .. .. ........ ... ... . .. 279,891 9,767 21,718

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS), JUNE 30. ... .. .. $ 184,934 8§ 17,113 § 12,638




i

SUPPORT TELE-
SERVICES COMMUNICATIONS TOTAL

$ 37,020 § 25,259 162,625
624 2,105 14,778

37,644 27,364 177,403

26,937 18,096 103,322

8,619 3,849 45,075

477 — 477

141 400 10,113

36,174 22,345 158,987

1,470 5,019 18,416

— 1,136 12,985
- (2,494) (12,437)
(1) (49) (107)

(1) (1,407) 441

1,469 3,612 18,857

— — (110,467)

1,469 3,612 (91,610)

11,044 (16,643) 305,777

$ 12513 8 (13,031) 214,167
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STATE OF OHIO

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ‘
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

{amounts expressed in thousands)

OHIO OHIO OHIO
BUILDING DATA PENAL
AUTHORITY NETWORK INDUSTRIES
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income (LOSS) .« o oo v et e 3 (94,957} $ 7,346 $ (9,080)
Add (Deduct) Items Not Affecting Cash:
Decrease (Increase) in Other Receivables. .............. (988) 22 336
Decrease (Increase) in Intergovernmental Receivables . . . .. — 212 (306)
Dacrease (Increase) in Due from Other Funds. ... ........ —_— 6,373 8,174
Increase ininventory . ........ ... ... . i i —_ (63) (1.248)
Decrease (Increase) in Other Current Assets. . ........... 15 (274) —
Increase in Other Restricted Assets. . .................. — (8,907) —
Decrease in Other Noncurrent Assets .................. 241 —_ —
Decrease in Accounts Payable. . ...................... —_ (3,865) (1,571}
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities . . ............. (2,922) 261 387
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds. . ............ 43,825 (106) 510
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenues ... ........... 8,000 — 687
Increase in Refund and Other Liabilities. . . .............. 583 1,200 —
Increase in Contributed Capital . ...................... — — —_
Depreciation. .. ....... ... i, — — —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES . . ... ... ... . . . i, (46,203) 2,199 (2,111)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Current Investments . .. ................... (2,054) —_ —
Purchase of Fixed Assels. . . ... ninnninnn. — — —
Sale of Restricted Investments. . . ..................... 50,668 8,656 —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES . . . ... ... i 48,614 8,656 —
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Retirement of Revenue Bonds . . ................. ... (1.495) —_ —
Reduction of Lease Obligations and QOther Payables. ... ... —_ (5,957) —
Decrease in Advances from Other Funds. . .............. —_ — —
Decroase in Advances to Other Funds. ................. — 361 —
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES. . . .. ... (1,495} (5,596) —
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. . ... ... . ... ... 916 5,259 (2,111)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 .............. 6,739 8,228 9,884
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 ............ $ 7,655 $ 13,487 3 7,773




SUPPORT TELE.
SERVICES COMMUNICATIONS TOTAL
1,469 8 3612 % (91,610)
5 67 (564)
129 (280) (245)
(3,745) 2,381 13,183
(392) —_ (1,703)
_ —_ (259)
—_ (155) (9,062)
— — 241
(320) (5,358) (11,114)
106 (123) (2,291)
(13) 911) 43,305
(337) — 8,350
— — 1,783
317 — 317
477 _ 477
(2,304) (773) (49,192)
—_ — (2,054)
(480) (193) (673)
— 834 60,158
(480) 641 57,431
— - (1,495)
— (1,506) (7.463)
— (542) (542)
— —_ 361
— (2,048) (9,139)
(2,784) (2,180) (900)
5,373 4,032 34,256
2589 § 1,852 § 33,356

e O
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Trust Funds account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity. Agency Funds
account for assets held by the State as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governments, and/or other funds.

Expendable Trust
The Employment Services Fund accounts for unemployment insurance benefit claims.
Pension Trust

The State Highway Patrol Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for pension

benefit payments to qualified employees of the State Highway Patrol who participate in the State
Highway Patrol Retirement System, a component unit of the State.

Agency
The Holding and Distribution Fund accounts for assets held until such time that a deter-

mination has been made to refund amounts to the original owners or to distribute amounts to
other State funds.

The Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits Fund accounts for assets held to

liquidate the State's payroll withholding obligations.

The Tax Refunds Fund accounts for assets held to liquidate the State's tax refund obliga-

tions.

The Unclaimed Funds Fund accounts for assets held for owners of unclaimed intangible

property. Unclaimed property is that property in which the owner has not taken some action to
indicate ownership interest over a certain period of time specified under Chapter 169, Revised
Code.

The STAROhio Fund accounts for assets held for local government units that participate in
the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROhio), a pooled investment fund managed by
the Treasurer of State.

The Deferred Compensation Fund accounts for assets held for employees in accordance

with the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

The_Other Fund accounts for assets held for others, which are not accounted for in another
agency fund.
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STATE OF OHIO

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer
Cash with Custodian
Deposit with Federal Government
Security Deposits

Receivables:

Employer Contributions
Otherm B30T .. W N0 5 .5. . .. .o

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Pension Benefits

.........................
..............................
....................
................................

Investments . ....................

................

............................
................

.............................

Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan
OtherAssets ....................

................

...............................

................................

...............................

........................

..................

.................................

................................

............................

EXPENDABLE PENSION
TRUST TRUST AGENCY
STATE
EMPLOYMENT HIGHWAY HOLDING &
SERVICES PATROL DISTRIBUTION
— $ =5 $ 28,548
- 61 7,210
303,850 —_ —
3,646 — —
— 146,762 —
200,465 — —
3,535 3,114 _
11 1,040 —
- 41 £
511,507 $ 151,018 $ 35,758
e $ = $ =5
— — 32,319
28,952 191 3,439
28,952 191 35,758
— 150,827 —
482,555 — —
482,555 150,827 —_
511,507 $ 151,018

s an7ss



T et e s i i N

PAYROLL
WITHHOLDING & UNCLAIMED STAR DEFERRED
FRINGE BENEFITS TAX REFUNDS FUNDS OHIO COMPENSATION OTHER
$ 149,965 6,005 $ — 3 — s — 7,018
232 — 19,055 — - 11,969
— —_ — — — 248,797
— — 46,951 865,581 — 3,356
436 — 40,833 — — 4
306 — - — 1,224 3
— — — — 175,811 —
$ 150,939 6005 § 106,839 § 865581 § 177,035 271,147
$ 8,147 — 3 — 8 865581 § — 6,705
10,962 — — — — —
131,830 6,005 106,839 —_ — 264,442
— - — —_ 177,035 —
150,939 6,005 106,839 865,581 177,035 271,147
$ 150,939 6005 § 106,839 § 865,581 § 177,035 271,147

{continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer .. ............ ... .. . .
Cash with Custodian

Security Deposits ... .......... ... ... .. ... ... ...
Investments.............. ... ... ... .. ... .. .. . .. .
Receivables:
Employer Contributions . . ........................ ..
Other ...

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Fund Balances:

Reserved for:

TOTAL

3 191,536
38,527

303,850
252,443
1,062,650

200,465
47,922

$ 880,433
43,281

541,698
177,035

1,642,447

150,827
482,555

633,382
$ 2,275,829

e ———————
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STATE OF OHIO

AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

(amounts expressed in thousands)

BALANCE BALANCE
HOLDING & DISTRIBUTION: JULY 01, 1887 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 1988
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer ... ............. $ 28,292 % 493,971 § 493,715 $ 28,548
Cash with Custodian . . ............... ..., 7,759 7,210 7.759 7.210
Due from Other Funds. .. ................. — 7 1 —_—
Total Assets ... ...................... . s 36,051 ¢ 501,182 $ 501,475 $ 35,758
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Funds. ................. .. .. $ 28,291 % 489,690 $ 485,662 $ 32,319
Refund and Other Liabilities ............... 7,760 4,714 9,035 3,439
Total Liabilittes . . ................... ... $ 36,051 ¢ 494,404 $ 494,697 $ 35,758
PAYROLL WITHHOLDING & FRINGE BENEFITS:
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . ... ............ $ 158,215 $ 838,264 $ 846,534 $ 149,965
Cash with Custodian ... .............. ... . 72 6,304 6,144 232
Other Receivables. . ................. .. .. 561 436 561 436
Due from Other Funds. . .................. 273 604 571 306
Total Assets. ......................... 3 159,121 § 845,628 $ 853,810 % 150,939
LIABILITIES
Accrued Liabilities . .. .............. ... ... $ 7,260 $ 199,552 § 198,665 $ 8,147
Due to Other Funds. ... ............... ... 10,015 104,516 103,569 10,962
Refund and Other Liabilities . .............. 141,846 534,920 544,936 131,830
Total Liabilities . .. ................. ... . $ 159,121 § 838,988 $ 847,170 $ 150,939
TAX REFUNDS:
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . ............... $ 11,050 $ 1,069,629 $ 1,074,674 $ 6,005
Total Assets. . ........................ $ 11,050 ¢ 1,069,629 $ 1,074,674 $ 6,005
LIABILITIES
Accrued Liabilities .. ... ............ .. ... . $ — 8 489,959 $ 489,959 $ —
Refund and Other Liabilities . .............. 11,050 579,670 584,715 6,005
Total Liabilities. . .. ................... . $ 11,050 & 1,069,629 % 1,074,674 $ 6,005
UNCLAIMED FUNDS:
ASSETS
Cash with Custodian ... .............. ... . $ 27,458 $§ 67,641 % 76,044 % 19,055
Investments . .......... ... ... . .. . ... .. .. 31,406 27,713 12,168 46,951
Other Receivables................. .. .... 40,833 — — 40,833
Total Assets......................... . $ 99,697 $ 95,354 $ 88,212 ¢ 106,839
LIABILITIES
DuetoOther Funds..................... . $ 1,990 § —  § 1,990 & —_
Refund and Other Liabilities ............... 97,707 95,354 86,222 106,839
Total Ligbilities . .. ... ......... ... .... .. $ 99,697 ¢ 95,3549 $ 88,212 $ 106,839
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STAR OHIO:
ASSETS

Investments . ... ... .. .. ... .. . .. .

LIABILITIES

Accrued Liabilities . . ... . ... ... .. . . . .
Total Liabilities. .. ......... ... .. .. . .

DEFERRED COMPENSATION:
ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Liability for Deferred Compensation . .., ... ..
Total Liabilities . .. ........... ... .. .

OTHER:
ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer ... ... .. .. .. .
Cash with Custodian . .......... ... ... .
Security Deposits ............. .. ... . . .
Investments................ ... ... . . .

TOTAL AGENCY:
ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer ....... .. . .. ..
Cash with Custodian ... ..... .. ... .. . .
Security Deposits .. ......... ... .. ..
Investments........... ... ... .. . .

BALANCE BALANCE

JULY 01, 1987 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 1988
879,387 —_ 13,806 865,581
879,387 — 13,806 865,581
879,387 _ 13,806 865,581
879,387 —_ 13,806 865,581
1,067 33,262 33,105 1,224
141,353 49,429 14,971 175,811
142,420 82,691 48,076 177,035
142,420 49,586 14,971 177,035
142,420 49,586 14,971 177,035
1,070 22,074 16,066 7,018
12,241 102,904 103,176 11,969
236,264 123,935 111,402 248,797
4,240 16,839 17,723 3,356
4 4 4 4
2 33 32 3
253,761 265,789 248,403 271,147
701 21,965 15,961 6,705
253,060 209,225 197,843 264,442
253,761 231,190 213,804 271,147
198,567 2,423,958 2,430,989 191,536
47,530 184,059 193,123 38,466
236,264 123,935 111,402 248,797
915,033 44,552 43,697 915,888
41,398 440 565 41,273
1,342 33,900 33,709 1,533
141,353 49,429 14,971 175,811
1,581,487 2,860,273 2,828,456 1,613,304
887,348 711,476 718,391 860,433
40,296 594,206 591,221 43,281
511,423 1,423,883 1,422,751 512,555
142,420 49,586 14,971 177,035
1,581,487 2,779,151 2,747,334 1,613,304
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired or con-
structed for use by the State for general governmental purposes. These include all fixed
assets except those accounted for in the proprietary and trust funds.
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STATE OF OHIO

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1988

{amounts expressed in thousands)

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 1887 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS JUNE 30, 1988

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:

Land. ... ... ... .. 3 141,759 § 3,408 $ 171 8 144,996

Buildings ........... ... ... . ... ... . . ... ... 937,687 29,059 7,436 959,310

Improvements Other Than Buildings ............ 52,993 10,675 — 63,668

Machinery and Equipment ... .............. ... 122,465 10,588 6,965 126,088

State Vehicles. . ............................ 128,213 21,339 9,424 140,128

Construction-in-Progress . . .. ................. 393,459 271,572 21,647 643,384
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS . . . . .................. $ 1,776,576 $ 346,641 § 45,643 $ 2,077,574

INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:
ACQUIRED BEFORE JULY 1, 1987. . ... .............. $ 1776576 § — 8 45643 $ 1,730,933

ACQUIRED ON OR AFTER JULY 1, 1987:
Capital Projects Funds:

General Obligation Bonds .................. —_ 50,064 — 50,064
Federal Grants . .......................... — 2,432 — 2,432
General Fund Revenues...................... —_ 35,255 —_ 35,255
Special Revenue Fund Revenues. .............. — 34,180 —_ 34,180
Other Financing Sources:
Special Obligation Bonds................... —_ 224,683 — 224,683
Donations .. ............................. — 27 — 27
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS .. .. ... ... $ 1,776,576 3 346,641 $ 45643 $ 2,077,574
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» Tablc 4

STATE OF OHIO

PERSONAL INCOME
FOR THE LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Ohio's Total

Personal Per Capita Personal Income

Income Percent United
Calendar Year (in millions) Change Ohio States
1978 $ 87,514 $ 8,107 $ 8,136
1979 96,736 +10.5% 8,958 9,033
1980 105,035 + 8.6% 9,723 9,919
1981 113,969 + 8.5% 10,652 10,949
1982 117,766 + 3.3% 10,927 11,480
1983 123,972 + 5.3% 11,542 12,098
1984 134,761 + 8.7% 12,545 13,114
1985 142,033 + 5.4% 13,219 13,895
1986 148,929 + 4.9% 13,857 14,606
1987 157,580 + 5.8% 14,612 15,481

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
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OHIO

Age Group

Under 5 years

5 through 19 years
20 through 44 years
45 through 64 years
65 years and over

Source: General Population Characteristics --

STATE OF OHIO

POPULATION BY AGE GROUP
1970 Percent 1980

921,030 8.7% 787,150
3,198,880 30.0% 2,715,784
3,348,132 31.4% 3,928,118
2,186,281 20.5% 2,197,118
997,694 9.4% 1,169,460
10,652,017 100% 10,797,630

Table 5

Percent

Ohio, 1980 Census of Population, U.S. Bureau of Census

UNITED STATES
Age Group 1970 Percent 1980 Percent
Under 5 years 17,154,337 8.4% 16,348,254 7.2%
5 through 19 years 59,816,063 29.4% 56,110,209 24.8%
20 through 44 years 64,366,255 31.7% 84,035,253 37.1%
45 through 64 years 41,809,769 20.6% 44,502,662 19.6%
65 years and over 20,065,502 9.9% 25,549,427 11.3%
203,211,926 100% 226,545,805 100%

Source: General Population Characteristics -- United States Summary, 1980 Census of Population, U.S. Bureau of Census

OHIO'S TOTAL POPULATION AS A PERCENTAGE OF
U.S. TOTAL POPULATION

1970 1980
Ohio U.S. Percent Ohio U.S. Percent
10,652,017 203,211,926 52% 10,797,630 226,545 805 4.8%




STATE OF OHIO Table 6

AVERAGE MONTHLY UNEMPLOYMENT RATES
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS AND FIRST HALF OF CALENDAR 1988

Calendar Year Ohio United States
1978 5.4% 6.0%
1979 5.9% 5.8%
1980 8.4% 71%
1981 9.6% 7.6%
1982 12.5% 9.7%
1983 12.2% 9.6%
1984 9.4% 7.5%
1985 8.9% 7.2%
1986 8.1% 7.1%
1987 7.0% 6.2%
1988 (First Half) (a) 6.7% 5.8%

Source: Ohio Bureau of Employment Services

(a) Subject to revision, not seasonally adjusted
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STATE OF OHIO Table 7

List of Major Industrial Corporations That Maintain Headquarters in Ohio

American Greetings Corporation (Cleveland) Owens-Coming Fiberglas Corporation (Toledo)
A. Schulman Incorporated (Akron) Owens-Illinéis Incorporated (Toledo)
B.F. Goodrich Company (Akron) Parker Hannifin Corporation (Cleveland)
Carlisle Corporation (Cincinnati) Penn Central Corporation (Cincinnati)
Champion Spark Plug Company (Toledo) Philips Industries Incorporated (Dayton)
Cincinnati Milacron Incorporated (Cincinnati) Proctor & Gamble Company (Cincinnati)
Cleveland-Cliffs Incorporated (Cleveland) Reliance Electric Company (Cleveland)
Cooper Tire & Rubber (Findlay) Reynolds & Reynolds Company (Dayton)
Dana Corporation (Toledo) Rubbermaid Incorporated (Wooster)
Eagel-Picher Industries Incorporated Sherwin-Williams Company (Cleveland)
(Cincinnati)

Standard Products Company (Cleveland)
Eaton Corporation (Cleveland)

Standard Register Company (Dayton)
Ferro Corporation (Cleveland)

The Standard Oil Company (Cleveland)

Gencorp (Fairlawn)
Timken Company (Canton)

Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company (Akron)
Trinova Corporation (Maumee)

Lubrizol Corporation (Wickliffe)
TRW Incorporated (Cleveland)

M.A. Hanna Company (Cleveland)
United Brands Company (Cincinnati)

Mead Corporation (Dayton)
Worthington Industries Incorporated (Columbus)
NCR Corporation (Dayton)

Ohio Mattress (Cleveland)

Source: The Fortune 500 Listing, Fortune Magazine, April 1988
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